
 

 

Town of Richmond 
Planning Commission Meeting 

AGENDA 

Wednesday February 19th, 2020, 7:00 PM 
 

Planning Commission to be held in the 

Richmond Town Center Meeting Room, 203 Bridge Street, Richmond, VT 

 

1. Adjustments to the Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Minutes 

• May 22, 2019 

• June 5, 2019 

• June 19, 2019 

• February 5, 2020 

 

3. Public comment for non-agenda items 

 

4. Future Priorities  

a. Review of List of Priorities 

 

5. Objectives and communication strategy for public input 

 

6. Corrections and modifications to the Village Downtown Zoning District and other pertinent 

zoning regulations 

 

7. Discussion on Regulating Short-Term Rentals 

 

8. Other Business, Correspondence, and Adjournment 

a. Nomination of an Acting Administrative Officer, per Richmond Zoning Regulations 

Section 8.1 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

For additional information and accommodations to improve the accessibility of this meeting, 

please contact Ravi Venkataraman at 802-434-2430 or at rvenkataraman@richmondvt.gov 



TO: Richmond Planning Commission  

FROM: Ravi Venkataraman, Town Planner 

DATE:  February 13, 2020 

SUBJECT: Table of Contents 

 

Provided below are a list of agenda items and the respective documents for those agenda items: 

2. Approval of Minutes: 

a. Page 3: May 22, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Page 6: June 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

c. Page 8: June 19, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

d. Page 10: February 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

4. Future Priorities 

a. Page 15: List of Future Priorities 

b. Page 16: Richmond Town Plan Implementation Table  

c. Page 27: List of Uses 

d. Page 30: Official Zoning District Map (From Current Zoning Regulations) 

e. On a separate document: Williston Unified Development Code (WillistonUDC.pdf) 

6. Corrections and Modifications to the Village Downtown Zoning District and other pertinent zoning 

regulations 

a. Page 31: VDZD Revised Draft for the 2-19-2020 Meeting 

b. Page 36: Language regarding Veterinary Clinics 

7. Discussion on Regulating Short-Term Rentals 

a. Page 37: Memorandum on Short-Term Rentals 

b. Page 39: “Vermont Supreme Court Reinforces JAM Golf” from Vermont League of Cities and 

Towns 

c. Page 41: “Village of Woodstock Short Term Rental Ordinance” 

d. Page 49:  Page 41 from the “Village of Woodstock Zoning Regulations” (pertaining to short-

term rentals) 

8. Other Business, Correspondence, and Adjournment 

a. Page 50: Memorandum on Nomination of an Acting Administrative Officer 



3 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 5-22-19  

  

Present: Mark Fausel, Brian Tellstone, Virginia Clarke, Lauck Parke, Scott Nickerson, Jessica 

Draper, Chris Cole, Alison Anand, Chris Granda, Brendan O’Reilly, Colin Moffat  

  

Called to Order: 7:05pm  

  

Public Comment: Chris Cole introduced himself to the commission. Mark and Scott said they 

thought his knowledge would be valuable.   

  

Update on Membership: Now up to 9 members, Chris Granda and Chris Cole have joined the 

ranks.   

  

Update regarding Zoning: Virginia gave an overview of what was discussed in the subcommittee 

meeting. She said the first topic was to discuss whether to do two districts or one district with 

one following shortly after. She said the next ask was to look into using square footage for 

density. Virginia said she could not find an example regulation where they use exclusively 

square footage. She said it was difficult to convert to that because the units would likely remain 

the same. She said bedrooms would now be addressed via parking. She said another task was 

reviewing density bonuses. Virginia said the issue with ADA was whether the units adaptable or 

visitable standard which are regulated differently, and it was already mostly covered under fire 

code. Mark asked if the subcommittee had covered splitting elderly and ADA into two different 

bonuses. The subcommittee said that they didn’t really discuss separation. Virginia pointed out 

that a topic also discussed was that we have limited administrative power in the planning and 

zoning department, and the affordability bonus would require heavy administrative attention. 

She said the other two criteria were energy efficiency and parking. Virginia said they left he 25 

kw per unit has not yet been changed. Virginia acknowledged Chris Granda may have more 

insight for that. She said the parking bonus was reduced to 2:1 spaces to bonus units but 

location was still up in the air and we were considering the location to be flexible. She said they 

also felt it was necessary to increase the base units if they were to remove two of the bonuses. 

Lauck said that going back to the 15 would get back to the interim zoning minimum and then 

anything over that would fall under the bonus. Mark stated that he felt that the size of the parcel 

and the location of it and its development if we don’t ensure public parking we are doing the 

town a disservice. He said he feels obligated to work something out that includes public parking. 

Lauck said that a lionshare of the subcommittee debate was trying to solve that issue. Lauck 

said that he spoke with Jessica about the town attorney’s concern over how such an 

arrangement would work. He said from his standpoint the cleanest way to address it would be to 

have Buttermilk deed the town the 3 undevelopable acres and utilize it for parking and consider 

a right of first refusal on a future town center building. Brendan passed out copies of the site 

plan for his development. The commission and representatives from Buttermilk discussed what 

was shown on the plans for parking and future buildings. They briefly discussed wetland 

regulations and the energy being produced by their array. The parking bonus was then 



4 
 

discussed as needing to be legally owned by the town. The commission and Brendan discussed 

the possibility of a lot line adjustment for the town to take space for parking at the town 

boundary.   

  

Gabe said that the last meeting was supposed to be for a vote, and it went to the wayside. Then 

he asked if a vote was going to happen for anything tonight. Mark said that at the beginning of 

the meeting they decided to only do Jolina Court. Gabe asked when a vote for the village will 

happen. Mark said he didn’t know. Gabe said he didn’t think it was fair to not have action on 

this, and didn’t think there was much more to discuss about the village. Gabe then left at the 

acknowledgement that a vote would not be happening.   

  

Brendan said he thought that a lot line adjustment was easier than deeding back and forth. 

Jessica said she thought an option could still be achieved with or without the 30 spaces and 

reminded the commission that the selectboard has the authority to enter those kinds of 

agreements.   

  

Mark asked the members how they felt about proceeding. Mark asked if the commission felt 

comfortable dropping what the subcommittee proposed. Virginia asked Colin what units have to 

be adaptable versus visitable. Discussion ensued about what is and isn’t accessible versus 

visitable. Mark asked everyone to indicated whether they supported the parts that were 

removed from the draft.   

  

Discussion then ensued about how many units would be base or achieved through bonus. The 

commission then discussed number of parking spaces that could be achieved if the base 

parking was reduced. Mark then informed the new commissioners to be about the traffic 

concerns with increase development at this site.   

  

Jessica explained where her 25kw metric came from. Mark said he agreed that he thought 

these were very specific to Buttermilk’s development.   

  

The commission decided to reject the 300sf minimum unit size. All other changes were 

accepted.   

  

Chris Granda asked about the stretch code requirement. Jessica and Virginia clarified how that 

applies to Jolina Court.   

  

Virginia asked to strike the word “only” from the parking requirement. Discussion ensued 

regarding the number of parking spaces and where they could go.   

  

Brendan said he would look into how much acreage would or could be deeded to the town if the 

parking bonus was utilized. Virginia said she wasn’t comfortable with 1:1 parking. Brendan said 

he felt like Buttermilk hasn’t gotten anything out of this project, but the town has gotten a lot out 



5 
 

and is still asking for more. Lauck proposed to kick the proposal back to the subcommittee and 

meet with Buttermilk to iron out the details.   

Jessica asked for the signature pages for the Code of Ethics Policy.   

  

  

Brian moved to adjourn, seconded by Virginia. All were in favor, adjourned 9:26pm  



6 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 6-5-19  

  

Called to Order: 7:09pm  

  

Present: Scott Nickerson, Brian Tellstone, Joy Reap, Virginia Clarke, Alison Anand, Chris Cole,  

Chris Granda, Mark Fausel, Jessica Draper, Patty Brushett, Jeff Forward, Brendan O’Reilly, Josi 

Kytle, Gabe Firman, Lars Whitman  

  

Public Comment: Patty asked the planning commission to consider inclusionary zoning for 

affordable housing, and to try and promote units that allow for space for children. Jeff Forward 

asked the planning commission to consider using LEED certification as a criteria for density 

bonuses because it encompasses more environmental factors in addition to energy benefits.   

  

Subcommittee Report: Virginia gave an overview of the subcommittee meeting held last 

Wednesday with Buttermilk, and that they had decided at that meeting to meet with the 

selectboard regarding the parking bonus because of the potential land exchange. She also 

explained that at the selectboard meeting the conversation never really made it to the land 

exchange and had tied in with tax stabilization. Virginia explained that at the end of the 

discussions on Monday it was decided to discuss the tax stabilization and density bonuses in a 

joint subcommittee.   

  

Reorganization: Mark apologized for how the previous week’s meeting had ended, and didn’t 

want his time as chair to end on a bad note. He said that he felt proud of the commission and its 

accomplishments. Mark said he felt that they were a well-rounded and diverse group. He asked 

Brian if he was interested in taking the chair seat and Brian said he was not. Mark nominated 

Scott for the chair position. Seconded by Brian. Scott accepted the nomination. Chris Granda 

nominated Virginia. Virginia declined. All were in favor of electing Scott as chair. So moved. Joy 

nominated Brian as Vice Chair. Seconded by Mark. Brian accepted. All were in favor of electing 

Brian as Vice Chair. So moved.   

  

Jolina Court Zoning: Jessica explained that although she had originally sent an email saying we 

would wait for subcommittee deliberations to work on Jolina Court, she had spoken to Brendan 

earlier in the day and decided to propose a vote on the base zoning district and hold off on just 

the density bonuses. Brendan spoke about finding the selectboard meeting frustrating and that 

he had spoken to Bard Hill in the meantime about the point of the planning commission if the 

selectboard has the authority to veto said efforts. Joy mentioned that not all regulations go to a 

town-wide vote, for example the gateway zoning that was changed when it was received by the 

selectboard was adopted by the board and not a town-wide vote. Discussion continued 

regarding the legal process and statutory restrictions. Scott said he agreed based on Monday’s 

meeting that more collaboration is needed and will hopefully be remedied through the 

subcommittee. Chris Granda said that the committee needs to document and educate 

effectively to prevent the need for changes at the selectboard level. Jessica explained how 



7 
 

voting on the base zoning would work. Josi said that she felt that much of what we’ve been 

discussing was already agreed to in the past. She explained past discussions of the 30% 

reserved parking requirements in escrow and how the new bonuses were unfair to others and 

targeted toward Buttermilk even though they were already being achieved. Jessica explained 

that she had done the math on the parking possibilities for buildings one and two and distributed 

the spreadsheet showing those figures. Mark asked why the 30% was needed if the new 

parking scheme based on bedrooms would actually reduce parking on its own. Joy also pointed 

out that different commercial uses would also reduce the parking requirements. Joy then also 

asked if the commission was going to require the solar to be owned by the parcel owner. The 

commission felt that the solar was a benefit either way and the ownership did not matter as long 

as it was on site. Discussion ensued about the draft language.   

  

Chris Granda moved to approve the core of the Jolina Court Zoning District Proposal without 

density bonuses based on the draft named Jolina Court District dated 6-5-19 including the street 

level commercial upper floor residential ratio, the bedroom based parking scheme, and to strike 

the language related to density bonuses and replace it with “This district may be eligible for a 

density bonus”. Seconded by Virginia. All were in favor, so moved.   

  

  

Other Business: Virginia clarified that on page 2 under residential density there is actually a list 

of possible densities for the commission to choose from. Gabe asked about alternative ways to 

regulate density such as eliminating units and just allow it on certain floors. The commission felt 

that this related to form-based zoning which was a long term goal of theirs but not something 

that could happen in a shorter time frame. The commission discussed the proposed parking 

exemptions and felt that the use of public parking permit idea should be discussed with the 

selectboard. Virginia moved to maintain Lauck, Scott, and herself as the members for both 

subcommittees with Alison as an alternate. Seconded by Mark. Discussion ensued about what 

needed to be further discussed in the draft. Chris Cole said that if density is what you’re trying to 

achieve you need to remove restrictions, and that the traffic issue won’t be solved because 

human nature is that issues don’t get addressed until they can no longer go unaddressed. All 

were in favor of the motion regarding the subcommittee. So moved. Joy moved to put the village 

zoning as the first business item on the next agenda. Seconded by Chris Cole. All were in favor, 

so moved.   

  

Brian moved to adjourn. Seconded by Chris Granda. Alison said that she had spoken with the 

school about population impacts and they said they welcomed the idea of more children. All 

were in favor, adjourned 9:24pm.   



8 
 

Planning Commission Minutes  

6-19-19  

  

Called to Order: 7:07pm  

  

Present: Brian Tellstone, Joy Reap, Scott Nickerson, Mark Fausel, Chris Cole, Alison Anand, 

Jessica Draper, Gabe Firman  

  

Absent: Lauck Parke, Virginia Clarke, Chris Granda  

  

Public Comment: NA  

  

Administrative Updates: Jessica reminded everyone of the hearing on July 3rd at 7pm regarding 

the Jolina Court proposed zoning regulations. She also reminded the commission that the DRB 

is still interested in holding a joint meeting to discuss other zoning changes. The commission 

discussed possible attendance issues for the hearing and Scott said he would verify with those 

that are absent. Jessica let everyone know that there will be an interest meeting next 

Wednesday at 7pm in the meeting room regarding a joint 3-town recreation committee idea for 

Richmond Huntington and Bolton. Mark said that he wants to have a tent at the 4th of July 

celebration about town government again this year. He asked the commission about 

participation and ideas. Scott offered to assist.   

  

Report from Subcommittee: Scott explained that the meeting was attended by Colin, Josi, Bard, 

Roger, Jessica, Josh, Scott, and Virginia. Josi provided an updated tax schedule estimate, and 

there was discussion about past ideas and wishes for the creamery site. Scott explained that 

there was disagreement about what constituted economic development regarding the tax 

stabilization article. The selectboard representation had expressed desire for commercial, 

industrial, and retail while Buttermilk representation believed that more people in town 

supported the businesses and therefore contributed to economic development. The selectboard 

agreed to entertain tax stabilization if the cost savings could be passed on to a tenant’s cost. 

The selectboard had essentially rejected the proposed parking bonus, but showed willingness to 

entertain the energy bonus idea and revisit affordability. Jessica explained that as of Monday 

night the selectboard is now leaning more so away from allowing additional units and is not 

supportive of the proposed ratio. Discussion ensued about how the discussion on Monday at 

the selectboard meeting indicated that the selectboard would very likely change the proposal 

significantly.   

  

Village Downtown District: The map of the district was discussed. Jessica explained that the 

boundary was shrunk to include parcels of more similar sizes and not include parcels that are 

dissimilar. Discussion ensued about the parking spaces, and Scott asked the planning 

commission if they were okay with the zone as mapped. The commission discussed adding the 

MMCTV building, the ski express building, harley brown building, and the funeral home building 



9 
 

to the drafted district. Mark moved to add the parcels. Seconded by Chris. All were in favor, so 

moved. Mark said that he felt a lower base density with a larger bonus would be preferable to 

him. The commission discussed the possible density bonuses or possibility for just changing the 

base density. Gabe and Mark disagreed on the parking issues in the upper block area. 

Discussion returned to how density could be achieved on the upper block. Joy moved to accept 

the 24 units per acre density. Seconded by Brian. Discussion ensued about the parking bonus 

idea and base density. All but Mark voted in favor. Motion passed. Jessica asked the 

commission to consider parking supply and parking exemptions. The commission decided to 

utilize a bedroom based scheme for parking supply. The commission also supported the parking 

exemption and parking plan clause. Joy asked if everyone was okay with the list of allowed and 

conditional uses, and the commission appeared to be in support. Scott asked if anyone was 

interested in a form-based regulation for new construction in a historic district. Scott proposed a 

statement under Special Conditions and Development Standards that would require 1.  

compatibility of size, scale, color, materials, and character of the district and 2. construction 

utilizing materials similar or the same to the existing buildings of the district; both standards 

would apply for all new construction and all new or remodeled exterior facades. Brian moves to 

approve the amended draft to a hearing. Seconded by Joy. All but Mark were in favor, so 

moved.   

  

Brian moved to adjourn. Seconded by Mark. Adjourned 9:17pm.   

  

  

  

  



10 
 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 2/5/2020 

 

Called to order: 7:07 pm 

 

Members present: Chris Cole (chair), Brian Tellstone, Joy Reap (left meeting at 7:27 pm), Scott 

Nickerson, Virginia Clarke, Chris Granda, Alison Anand (Mark Fausel and Lauck Parke were 

absent) 

 

Others present: Josi Kytle  

 

1. Adjustments to the Agenda 

2. Approval of the minutes 

 

Motion by Alison Anand, second by Brian Tellstone to approve the minutes of the May 1, 2019 

Planning Commission Meeting. Voting: unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Scott Nickerson, second by Tellstone to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2019 

Planning Commission Meeting and the May 15, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting. Voting: 

unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Virginia Clarke, second by Tellstone to approve the minutes of the January 15, 2019 

Planning Commission Meeting. Voting: unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

3. Public comment for non-agenda items 

 

4. Future priorities 

 

Chris Cole said this is an opportunity to catalogue a number of items the Planning Commission 

would like to address in the near future. Joy Reap said the commissioners should recap items 

that have come up in the previous months, such as corrections to the zoning regulations that 

need to be made, recommendations from the DRB, the Farrs’ request, and the Cochrans’ 

request. Clarke said that the commission should review the goals of the Town Plan. Clarke also 

added Reap’s request of reviewing the Gateway District regulations.  

 

Cole requested looking into regulations for short-term rentals. Other commissioners agreed. 

Chris Granda added that the commission should strategize how it wants to tackle the topic of 

short-term rentals and ensure the public’s involvement in the discussion. Reap said this topic 

would touch upon housing affordability as well. 

 

Reap suggested discussions on transportation. Cole said the Town has been working on 

transportation through the transportation committee. Cole said the transportation committee is in 

the planning and grants phase. Cole added that the transportation committee requested to 

pursue grants for a Complete Streets study of Bridge Street and for a bike/led master plan for 

the entire town. Cole said the transportation committee was also looking to install a hitching post 



11 
 

so people can slug for rides. Cole clarified to the commission that “slugging for rides” is akin to 

carpooling.  

 

Granda requested further discussion on Stretch Code. 

 

Reap asked if acting on these priorities and the implementation list in the Town Plan would only 

be through zoning. Clarke said not necessarily, although zoning is a key aspect. Clarke said one 

item on the priority list the commissioners could pursue is setting up a housing committee. 

 

Reap asked when the last time the zoning regulations in its entirety were updated. Ravi 

Venkataraman said that zoning was established in 1969 and continuously amended since then. 

Anand and Clarke said that the zoning regulations were fully revised in 2012 but voted down. 

Reap said since so much time has elapsed, zoning needs to be updated to fit the current 

context. Clarke said systematically overhauling the zoning regulations is what the commission is 

currently doing. Cole added that other items should be worked on simultaneously with the 

overhaul of the zoning regulations to prevent commissioners from getting worn out with a single 

task. Granda said after the zoning regulations have been revised, the commission should review 

the entire document to make sure the zoning regulations fit together.  

 

Reap said the commission should garner public input before going forward. Cole recommended 

holding a meeting specifically to gain public input. Cole said the commission should invite the 

broader community so that they get a sense of the Planning Commission’s goals, instead of 

speaking to individual landowners seeking zoning changes in their favor on a meeting-by-

meeting basis. Clarke said the commission could do a mailing to residents to particular districts, 

informing them about upcoming discussions for their districts. Anand asked if the commission 

wanted one general meeting on zoning for the larger public to allow residents to voice their 

concerns. Anand said this would provide the commission information on what to prioritize.  

 

5. Continued review of proposed amendments to Jolina Court Zoning District. 

 

Ravi Venkataraman said that he made modifications to the following based on discussions 

during the January 15, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting: setback requirements, family child 

care home uses, parking setback requirements, and building height regulations. Venkataraman 

explained that the best way to explain the setback requirements for the Jolina Court District 

would be through a map and that the map enclosed would be added to the end of the zoning 

regulations.  

 

Nickerson asked if the lot lines on the survey enclosed in the interim zoning were clarified. 

Venkataraman said yes. He presented the commission with a blown-up version of the survey 

plat. He explained that one of the lot lines is actually based on the bank of the river, and 

therefore could fluctuate depending on the location of the riverbank.  

 

Cole informed the public that the Planning Commission decided during their January 15th 

meeting that the setback requirements for the district should be the same as was put forth in the 



12 
 

Interim Zoning. Cole added that after discussions with Venkataraman, a sentence will be added 

to the regulations to address any conflicts with lot lines, in which case, the periphery setbacks 

would apply. Josi Kytle asked about the waivers that were granted with their PUD approval in 

Jolina Court. Cole said that these regulations would not impact the waivers that were approved. 

 

Clarke asked for further clarification about the parking setbacks because she found a conflict in 

the language. Venkataraman recommended removing a sentence regarding parking setbacks to 

reduce inconsistencies. The Planning Commissioners agreed.  

 

Venkataraman reviewed changes to the definitions, and said the changes to the definitions 

should reflect what was agreed upon during the Planning Commission’s previous meeting.  

 

Venkataraman said, regarding family child care homes, based on discussions and research, he 

concluded that family child care homes should be regulated as home occupations. He said this 

would allow greater latitude for planning and zoning staff to approve family child care homes 

that are licensed but housed in dwellings other than single-family dwellings. Anand asked if a 

state license and registration is a requirement to operate a family child care home. 

Venkataraman said yes.  

 

Venkataraman overviewed changes to the parking setback requirements. Venkataraman 

clarified that the suggested changes to the Village Commercial Zoning District are to dovetail 

with the changes to the parking setback requirements in the Jolina Court Zoning District.  

 

Venkataraman overviewed changes to the home occupation regulations. He said the changes to 

the home occupation regulations are to ensure that family child care home uses are not 

curtailed. 

 

Granda asked if any input was sought from a child care provider. Venkataraman said no. Clarke 

said these regulations should not affect child care providers. Cole added that homeowners with 

family child care facilities cannot be infringed, and therefore the commission cannot recommend 

any bylaws that would adversely affect the protections granted for family child care homes.  

 

Venkataraman reviewed the changes to the building height regulations. Clarke asked further 

clarification on the ground adjacent to the building. Kytle also asked for additional clarification on 

the ground adjacent to the building. Venkataraman said that adjacent finished grade would be a 

point five feet from the side of the building, in order to lean a ladder against the building and 

gain access. Cole asked how the draft regulation would impact agricultural structures. Clarke 

pointed out the exception for agricultural structures. Cole asked about regulations for buildings 

that do require a construction permit from the Vermont Division of Fire Safety. Cole asked for 

clarification on measuring the height of the building. Venkataraman said the height of the 

building would be from the average finished grade to the highest point of the roof. Clarke asked 

Kytle if the buildings she is proposing would be in compliance with the draft regulations. Kytle 

said yes. Clarke added that with buildings that do not require a construction permit from the 



13 
 

Vermont Division of FIre Safety, the Vermont Division of Fire Safety would address the Town’s 

capacity to provide emergency services.  

 

Clarke said she would like language in the definitions regarding veterinary clinics. 

Venkataraman said that nearby municipalities designate veterinary clinics as a separate use, 

due to its unique impacts. Venkataraman also recommended establishing veterinary clinics as a 

separate use. Cole agreed. Cole said that this issue can be addressed at a later date, separate 

from the Jolina Court District conversations.  

 

Motion by Nickerson, Second by Granda, to finalize the changes to the Town Zoning 

Regulations Sections 2.4.5, 3.0, 3.5.4, 3.9, 4.10.1, 4.11.3(c), 4.12, 5.3.3, 5.7, 5.11.1, 5.11.2, 

5.12.2, 6.1.6, and 7.1; and to direct staff to distribute copies of the amendment proposal to the 

Selectboard. Voting: unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

Clarke asked about the amendment process going forward. Venkataraman said that the 

Planning Commission’s review of the zoning regulations is on behalf of the Selectboard and 

therefore the Planning Commission does not need to warn a public hearing. Venkataraman 

added that because substantial modifications were made, the Selectboard will need to warn a 

public hearing again on this subject matter.  

 

Cole thanked the Planning Commission for their diligence inreviewing the Jolina Court District 

regulations, Clarke for her work in drafting the changes to the zoning, Kytle for her patience and 

willingness to work with the Town on this matter, and Venkataraman for his assistance.  

 

8. Other Business, Correspondence, and Adjournment 

 

Clarke asked if the Planning Commission had any issues with the proposed changes to 

Hinesburg and Bolton’s policies—both of which were correspondence items from the previous 

meeting. The commission did not have any concerns with the policy documents.  

 

Cole recommended to Venkataraman that he reach out to Larry Lackey of the Burlington 

Airport. Cole said that Lackey discussed with the Planning Commission months ago height 

regulations to bring the Town into compliance with FAA regulations.  

 

Granda notified the Planning Commission of the Transportation Climate Initiative meetings.  

 

Granda talked about additional opportunities for funding for electric vehicle charging stations. 

Cole said the Town could reach out to utility companies. Granda said that the Town did get a 

grant for an electric vehicle charging station at the Town offices. Venkataraman said he has 

talked to CCRPC about funding for additional electric vehicle charging stations and it has said it 

can provide funding for electric vehicle charging station projects.  

 

Clarke said that the siting of renewable energy facilities should be on the list of priorities.  

 



14 
 

Venkataraman asked if the planning commission was interested in creating a unified 

development ordinance. He said that if multiple ordinances are going to be created, having an 

integrated land development regulations document would be easier to handle. Cole asked 

Venkataraman had any example unified development ordinances. Venkataraman cited Williston 

and Burlington. Cole recommended forwarding Williston’s ordinance to the Planning 

Commisstion for the next meeting.  

 

Clarke suggested amending the zoning map. Venkataraman said that the zoning map does not 

match parcel lines. Venkataraman also said that this raises the broader question of whether the 

commission wants to expand or contract districts. Clarke said that this question would become 

clearer once the commission has public input.  

 

Cole asked what commissioners would like to see on the next meeting agenda. Clarke said 

corrections to the Village Downtown Zoning District should be included. Anand said the public 

discussion should happen soon, before the commission addresses other topics.  

 

Motion by Tellstone, second by Scott Nickerson, to adjourn. Voting: unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:47 pm.  



 

15 

 

List of Future Priorities (From 2/5/2020 PC Meeting): 

• Correct the Village Downtown Zoning District 

• Address recommendations from the DRB 

• Address request from the Farrs for a self-storage facility 

• Address request from the Cochrans 

• Address the Town Plan Implementation items 

• Revise the Gateway District regulations 

• Address short-term rentals 

• Strategize for engaging the Richmond community and gaining their input 

• Address housing affordability 

• Integrate stretch code into the zoning regulations 

• Establish subcommittees, such as housing subcommittee 

• Incrementally update the zoning regulations 

• Develop renewable Energy siting standards (Section 248) 

• Establish Unified Development Ordinance 

• Modify the zoning map (after the commission gains public input) 

 

Items Staff recommends pursuing in addition to the abovementioned items: 

• Adopt inclusionary zoning policies, or affordable housing bonuses 

• Consider applying for the Downtown Designation program to promote growth in the 

downtown area 

o Benefits of state designation programs: Reduced Act 250 review and fees, 

additional grants, and priority for grants 

o Richmond currently has a Village Center designation  

• Establish a Design Review District and become a Certified Local Government  

o Benefits: Increases access to funding to protect historic resources in town 

• Put in place Tactical Urbanism standards (To fulfill ED 1,5 and 4,4) 

• Integrate SmartCode into zoning regulations to foster sustainable development and 

walkable neighborhoods 

Other ideas worth considering 

• Additional PUD standards to protect core forests, prime ag soils, other natural resources, 

and trail networks, as well as to encourage the clustering of development  



� �

� � � � � � � � 	
 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� �  � ! � " � � � �# � � $ % & % � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � ) � ( ( � � � ! � � ' � * + ! � ' , � - ! � ) * ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' * � - ' � (  � ) �" ( �  � - � ( ' + � ) ( � * � � � . * � � � � ) � " * ! " � ( ) , * ' � � . " � ! � ) � � , * � . �  � '" ( � / � ( � � ) � � � ! � ) * !  � � - � ( ' 0 , � ( � * " " ! � ) * + ! � * � - ( � * ' � � * + ! � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � % & 3 4 , � � � " - * � � � . 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' & � 6 " ! � ( � 0 * � ' � � * ! ! � 0 / � ( � � � 7� ( * - � � � � � * ! , � � ' � � . � � " � ' & 0 * � ' � � � � ) � � ( * . � � , � ) ( � * � � � � � / � � 0+ � ' � � � ' ' � � � � ( " ( � ' � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � % & 9 1 � " " � ( � " � + ! � ) , � * ! � , " ( � . ( * � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � � * � - � � � ' � - � � /: � ) , � � � - + � � � ' � ( � � . � , * � � � 0 � " � ! � ) � � ' * � - ( � . � ! * � � � � ' * ! ! � 0 / � ( � , � � (" ( � ' � � ) � & � , � - �  � ! � " � � � � � / , � * ! � , ) * ( � * � - ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' & * � - + �' � " " � ( � � � . * � - * ! ! � 0 � � . * ) ) � ' ' / � ( * ! ! � � - �  � - � * ! ' � � / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � -" ( � . ( * � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � % & < 1 � " " � ( � * � - * ! ! � 0 / � ( * / / � ( - * + ! � / � � - * � - ) ! � � , � � . ' � � ( ) � ' ' � ) , * ' � , �2 , ( � / � 1 , � " * � - = � � - 1 , � ! / 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .� � % & > � � �  � � � * � � ' ' � � � � * ! . � � - ' * � - ' � (  � ) � ' ' � � � � � 0 � � , ! � ) * ! " ( �  � - � ( '� � � - � � � � / � 0 , � ( � . * " ' � 6 � ' � � � : � ) , � � � - * � - - � � � ( � � � � * ) � � ( ' � � /* ) � � � � � � � � ) ( � * ' � *  * � ! * + � ! � � � ? ) � � � � � )� �  � ! � " � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � % & @ 1 � " " � ( � � � 0 * � - A � ( � � � B � � � � " ! � � � � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � ( : � ) , � � � -( � ' � - � � � ' � , ( � � . , " � ! � ) � * � - ( � . � ! * � � � � & ' � ) , * ' ) � � � � � � � - � (� 6 " * � - � - * ! ! � 0 * � ) � � / ) � � � * . � � � - � ' � ( � * � - , � � � � ) ) � " * � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � % & C 1 � " " � ( � ) , � ! - ) * ( � " ( �  � - � ( � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' + � � * � � � * � � � � . " ( � . ( * � ' ' � ) , 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - &D � + ( * ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' ; � . � � � .� � % & E � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � 5 � * � - * ! ! � 0 " � + ! � ) � ' � � / � � � � ) � " * ! + � � ! - � � . ' * � -. ( � � � - ' & ' � ) , * ' � , � � � � � � � � � � : � � � * � - F � ! � � � � � ( ' G ( � � � & / � ( � , �* ( H � � & + � � H ' * ! � & * � - � � , � ( ! � ) * !� ( * / / � ( - * + ! � + � � � � . � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � % & I J � ) ! � - � * ) ) � ' ' � � . � � - ' & ' � (  � ) � ' & * � - + * ' � ) � � � - ' � � � , � � � � ( . � � ) �� * � * . � � � � � " ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � % & % L � � ! ' * � - � � , � ( � - � ) * � � � � * !� " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � ( ( � ' � - � � � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & % ? � ' � ( � � , * � * ! ! � � 0 � ' � * / / & + � * ( - ' & * � - ) � � � � ' ' � � � ' * ( � / � ! ! � 0 � � . � , �M � � � � � . D * 0 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & 3 N � ! - * � * � � � * ! � � � � � � . � / � � 0 � + � * ( - ' & ) � � � � ' ' � � � ' & * � - ' � * / / � �� � ) ( � * ' � ) � ! ! * + � ( * � � � � * � - ) � � � � � � ) * � � � � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & 9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � 5 � � " � � * � - � ( * � ' " * ( � � � ) � � � � � � ) * � � � � ) , * � � � ! '� , ( � � . , � ' � * + ! � ' , � - " ! * � / � ( � ' ' � ) , * ' = ( � � � 8 � ( ) , = � ( � � & 2 � � � ' J � H &* � - M M � 2 F * � - " � + ! � ) � 5 � * ) ) � � � � - * � � � � ' / � ( " * ( � � ) � " * � � � � � �� � � � � � . ' ' � ) , * ' � , � ! �  � ' � ( � * � / ( � � M M � 2 F 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & < M * � � � * � � * � ' � ( / ( � � � - ! � * � - ( � . � ! * ( ! � � " - * � � - � � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � * � - ' � ) � * !� � - � * " ! * � / � ( � ' 0 , � ) , 0 � ! ! � � ) ! � - � * ! � ' � � /  � ! � � � � � ( � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' O" � + ! � ) ) � � � * ) � � � / � ( � * � � � � / � ( * ! ! � � 0 � + � * ( - ' & ) � � � � ' ' � � � ' & * � - ' � * / / O* � - * ! � � H � � 4 � ' � � ( � 1 ! � " � ' P � ' � � � ' ' K ' ' � ) � * � � � � 0 � + ' � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & > � ( � � , � ) ( � * � � � � � / *) �  � ! � � � " � ! � ) � / � ( � , � � � � � ) � " * ! 0 � ( H " ! * ) � & + � * ( - ' & ) � � � � ' ' � � � ' & * � -� � 0 � � � - � * " ( � ' � � ) � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � 3 & @ � � � � � � � � � , � / * � ( * � - � B � � � * + ! � * " " ! � ) * � � � � * � - � � / � ( ) � � � � � � / � � 0 � &' � * � � & * � - / � - � ( * ! ! * 0 ' 2 � 0 � P � * ( - ' * � -K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 3 & C : � ) � . � � 5 � * � - ( � 0 * ( -  � ! � � � � � ( ' � (  � ) � � , ( � � . , ) � ! � + ( * � � � � * � -" ( � � � � � � � 2 � 0 � P � * ( - ' * � -K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .� � 9 & % 4 � ( H 0 � � , ! * � - � 0 � � ( ' 0 , � * ( � 0 � ! ! � � . � � * ! ! � 0 " � + ! � ) * ) ) � ' ' � �" ( �  * � � ! � * ) ) � ' ' � - � * � � ( * ! * � - � " � � ' " * ) � * ( � * ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .� � 9 & 3 1 � " " � ( � � , � : � ) , � � � - * � - F � ( � � � � D * � - 2 ( � ' � ' � � � , � � ( � � - � *  � ( ' � �" ( � � � ) � � * � � ( * ! ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � , * � 0 � ! ! , *  � " � + ! � ) * ) ) � ' ' / � ( ( � ) ( � * � � � � * !" � ( " � ' � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .� � 9 & 9 ? � ) � � ( * . � ) � ! ! * + � ( * � � � � + � � 0 � � � � , � � ( * � ! ' ) � � � � � � � � & ) � � ' � (  * � � � �) � � � � ' ' � � � & " ! * � � � � . ) � � � � ' ' � � � & * � - ( � . � � � * ! � ( . * � � 5 * � � � � ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .� � 9 & < � ( � * � � * � - - � ' � ( � + � � � � * � � ( � * ! ' � , * � / � ' � � ( ( � ' " � � ' � + ! � � ' � * � - ' &� � " ( �  � - " * ( H � � . * � - * ) ) � ' ' & * � - ' � . � * . � � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � 9 & > 1 � " " � ( � ! � � . 7 ' � * � - � � . � � � - � � ( ( � ) ( � * � � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .



� Q

� � 9 & @ 1 � " " � ( � � � � - � � ( ( � ) ( � * � � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' * � - " ( � . ( * � ' � , * � � � ) ! � - �) * � � � * ) ) � ' ' � � � , � 4 � � � � ' H � : �  � ( & ' 0 � � � � � . & ) ( � ' ' ) � � � � ( � ' H � � � . &' H * � � � . & � � � � � * � � + � H � � . & � � ) R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .� � < & % 1 � " " � ( � * ( � ' * � - ) � ! � � ( * ! " ( � . ( * � � � � . * � - � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � ( ( � ' � - � � � '* � -  � ' � � � ( ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .� � < & 3 ? 6 " ! � ( � � , � ) ( � * � � � � � / * � � 0 � ) � � � � � � � � � � � ( � * ) , * � - ( � ) ( � * � � � �' � * / / " � ' � � � � � : � ) ( � * � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � < & 9 J - � � � � / � " � ' ' � + ! � � � � , � - ' � / / � � - � � . / � ( � , � ( ( � ) ( � * � � � � * � - ) � � � � � � � �� � . * . � � � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' : � ) ( � * � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �� � ( �� � < & < 1 � " " � ( � " � + ! � ) * � - " ( �  * � � ( � ) ( � * � � � � * ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � ( � � - � *  � ( ' + �� � ' � ( � � . � , * � 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' * ! ! � 0 / � ( ' � ' � * � � * + ! � ( � ) ( � * � � � � * !� ' � ' � / " � + ! � ) * � - " ( �  * � � ! * � - ' � � ) ! � - � � . & + � � � � � ! � � � � � - � � & � , �" � � � � � � * ! - �  � ! � " � � � � � / ) � � � � � � � � ) � � � � ( ' & � � � - � � ( ' � * � � � . � (. * � , � ( � � . & " � ( / � ( � * � ) � ' " * ) � ' & � � ) R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � < & > � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � , ( � � . , � , � � � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � * � - ' � ) � * ! � � - � * : � ) ( � * � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � < & @ � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � * � - * ! ! � 0 ) � � � � � � � � � ' � � / � , � ! � + ( * ( � * � -� � � � � � � � � : � � � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - &D � + ( * ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' ; � . � � � .� � < & C � ( � * � � * � * � * . � � � � � " ! * � / � ( � � � � ) � " * ! " � + ! � ) ' " * ) � ' & / * ) � ! � � � � ' & * � -! * � - ' � , * � � � ) ! � - � ' ) * " � � * ! � � " ( �  � � � � � ' * � - + � - . � � * ' 0 � ! ! * '� " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � ( � 6 " * � - � - � ( � � 0 � ' � ' 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � < & E � � � � � � � � � � * ! ! � 0 / � ( " � + ! � ) �  � � � ' ' � ) , * ' / � ' � �  * ! ' & " * ( * - � ' & * � - � � - � ( / * � ( ' * � - ) ( � * � � * ' � ( � * � ! � � � - * " " ( �  * ! " ( � ) � ' ' / � ( ' � ) , � ' � ' 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � > & % � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � � , � " ( �  � ' � � � � / ) ( � � � ) * ! ' � (  � ) � ' � � ) ! � - � � . & + � � � � �! � � � � � - � � & ! * 0 � � / � ( ) � � � � � & / � ( � & * � - � � � ( . � � ) � � � - � ) * ! ' � (  � ) � '� , ( � � . , " � ! � ) � * � - 0 � ( H � � H � � " � , � ' � ' � (  � ) � ' + � � , * / / � ( - * + ! � * � -� / / � ) � �  � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � > & 3 / � ( ' � ( � ' " � � - � ( ' * ( � � ( * � � � - * � - ' � / / � ) � � � � ! �� B � � " " � - � � - � * ! 0 � � , *  * ( � � � � � / ' ) � � * ( � � ' * � - � , ( � * � ' 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - 1 , � ( �2 � ( �� � > & 9 1 � " " � ( � " � + ! � ) , � * ! � , " ( � . ( * � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � � * � - � � � ' � - � � /: � ) , � � � - + � � � ' � ( � � . � � 0 � " � ! � ) � � ' * ! ! � 0 / � ( � , � � ( " ( � ' � � ) � * � - � , �- �  � ! � " � � � � � / ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .� � > & < � � � � � � � � � � ) � ! ! * + � ( * � � 0 � � , * � - ' � " " � ( � � / / � ( � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � , * � * ( �� * ) H ! � � . � , � � " � * � � ) ( � ' � ' & * ' 0 � ! ! * ' � � , � ( � * S � ( � ' ' � � ' ' � ) , * '- � � � ' � � ) * + � ' � * � - ' � + ' � * � ) � * + � ' � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .� � > & > M � � � � � ( / � ( ' * / � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' � � ) ( � * ' � - ' � ) � ( � � � � � * ' � ( � ' &. ( * � � ' / � ( ' * / � � � � B � � " � � � � � ( " ( � S � ) � ' & � � 0 ) ( � ' ' 0 * ! H ' & * � -� - � ) * � � � � * ! � ( * � � � � . ' � ( ( � ' � � ( ) � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? ) � � � � � )� �  � ! � " � � � �# ? � $ % & % � ( � * � � ) ! � * ( . � � - � ! � � � ' * � - � � / � ( � * � � � � ( � ' � � ( ) � ' / � ( " � ( � � �* " " ! � ) * � � ' & ) ! * ( � / � � � . ( � B � � ( � � � � � ' * � - ' � � " ' / � ( " � ( � � � � � � . * � -* " " ( �  * ! R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � % & 3 1 � ( � * � ! � � � � , � + � ' � � � ' ' " � ( � � � � � � . " ( � ) � ' ' * � - ( � - � ) � " � ( � � � � � � .) � ' � ' / � ( ' � * ! ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � ( � � � ( � " ( � � � � ( ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � % & 9 � ( � * � � * " � ( � � � � � ' � " " � ( � " � " 7 � " * � - � 6 " � ( � � � � � * ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' ' � ) ,* ' ' " � ) � * ! �  � � � ' & � � � " � ( * ( � � * ( H � � ' & / � � - � ( � ) H ' * � - " � " 7 � " ' � � ( � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � % & < 8 ( � � � � � � ) � � � � � ) � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � � � 0 � � � - � * " ! * � / � ( � ' & * � - ) ( � * � � ? ) � � � � � )� �  � ! � " � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � % & > 1 � " " � ( � � , � : � ) , � � � - = * ( � � (+ � ' � � � ' ' � � � � ( " ( � ' � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? � % & @ � ( � * � � & � * � � � * � � * � - - � ' � ( � + � � � * ! � ' � � / ' � * � � * � - ( � . � � � * ! ( � ' � � ( ) � '* � - � � ) � � � �  � ' / � ( ! � ) * ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' & ' � ) , * ' D � ) * ! = � ( ' � " ( � . ( * � ' � (' � * � � - � ' � . � * � � � � * � - ) � ' � 7 ' , * ( � � . " ( � . ( * � ' O � � ) ! � - � � . * � � �  � � � � ( � � /*  * � ! * + ! � " ( � " � ( � � � ' & / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � - ' " * ) � ' / � ( ) � � � � ( ) � * ! & � � - � ' � ( � * ! � () � � � * . � + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � ? ) � � � � � )� �  � ! � " � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � % & C T ' � ! � ) * ! + � ' � � � ' ' � ' / � ( � � � � ) � " * ! " � ( ) , * ' � ' � / . � � - ' * � - ' � (  � ) � '0 , � � �  � ( / � * ' � + ! � 2 � 0 � P � * ( - ' * � -K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? � % & E K ! ! � 0 / � ( * � - � � ) � � ( * . � � 6 " * � - � - � � � ! � � � � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � / � ( � , ( � � 7 " , * ' �" � 0 � ( & , � . , 7 ' " � � - � � � � ( � � � * � - � � � � ) � " * ! 0 * � � ( * � - 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( 4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? � 3 & % T " - * � � : � ) , � � �� � ) � ( " � ( * � � � . ' � ( * � � . � � ' � � ( � - � ) � / � ( � ' � * � - / * ( � / ( * . � � � � * � � � � * � -* ! ! � 0 / � ( * " " ( �  � - / � ( � ' � * � - / * ( � + * ' � - ) � � � � ( ) � * ! * ) � �  � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � 3 & 3 1 � " " � ( � � ) ) � " * � � � � * ! � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � � , � / � � ! - ' � / ' ) � � � � � / � ) ' � � - � * � -� �  � � � � ( � & " � ' � � - � � � � / � ) * � � � � * � - � * � * . � � � � � & � �  * ' �  � ' " � ) � � ') � � � ( � ! & ( � / � ( � ' � * � � � � & * ' 0 � ! ! * ' � � � - � � ( ) ! * ' ' ( � � � ' * � - *  * ( � � � � � /( � ) ( � * � � � � * ! * ) � �  � � � � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .



� U

? � 3 & 9 V � � " � ( * ) H � / � � . � � � . ' � ( * � � . � � ' * � - ' � � - � � ' + � � � . " � ( ' � � - * � � , �' � * � � * � - ( � . � � � * ! ! �  � ! ' � � � � - � ( ' � * � - � , � � � " ! � � � � � * � � � � * � -( * � � / � ) * � � � � ' � / K ) � % C % � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .? � 3 & < 8 ( � � � � � � , � " ( � - � ) � � � � * � - " � ( ) , * ' � � . � / ! � ) * ! / � � - 0 , � � �  � (" � ' ' � + ! � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? � 3 & > ? 6 " ! � ( � ( � . � ! * � � ( � � � * � ' � / ' � " " � ( � � � . � , �  � * + � ! � � � � / / * ( � * � - / � ( � ' �+ * ' � - ! * � - � ' � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � 9 & % + � � � / � � ' � / � , � � � ' � . � * � � - � � 0 � � � 0 � " ( � . ( * � & * � - ( � � � 0 � , � F � ! ! * . �� � � � � ( � � ' � . � * � � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � 9 & 3 � �  � ! � " * � � 0 � � � 0 � M * ' � � ( 8 ! * � � , * � 0 � ! ! - � ( � ) � . ( � 0 � , � � � , �  � ! ! * . �* ( � * * � - * - - ( � ' ' ' � ( � � � ' ) * " � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � - � � � � / � � - � � � 6 � ' � � � ." ! * � ' R 8 � ( ' � � ' � ( * � � . � � ' � � * � � ( * ) � * � - / � ) � ' ) � � � � ( ) � * ! * ) � �  � � � � �W � � � '  � ! ! � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �? � 9 & 9 M * � � � * � � * � - � " . ( * - � 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' * � - - �  � ! � " � � � � ( �  � � 0" � ! � ) � � ' � � � � ' � ( � � , * � ) � � ) � � � ( * � � - . ( � 0 � , � ) ) � ( ' � � - � ' � . � * � � -. ( � 0 � , ) � � � � ( ' & � , � ' + ( � � . � � . ( � ' � - � � � ' * � - + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � � ) ! � ' �" ( � 6 � � � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � < & % � � ! ! * + � ( * � � 0 � � , � , � 2 ( * � ! ' � � � � � � � � � * � - � � � ' � (  * � � � � � � � � � ' ' � � �� � ) � � - � ) � * � * ' ' � ' ' � � � � � / ) � ( ( � � � * � - � � � - � - � ( * � ! ' * � - � ( * � !� � � 0 � ( H � � . � � : � ) , � � � - 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �? � < & 3 M * � � � * � � � * " ' * � - � " 7 � � 7 - * � � � � / � ( � * � � � � � � � , � � � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � : � ) ( � * � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � < & 9 1 � " " � ( � � � ( ! � ) * ! 4 � ' � � ( � 1 ! � " � ' P � ' � � � ' ' K ' ' � ) � * � � � � � � � � ' . � * ! '* � - � / / � ( � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? � < & < 1 � " " � ( � � ) � � � � � ) - �  � ! � " � � � � � / ! � ) * ! ) , * ( * ) � � ( * ( � * ' � , ( � � . ,5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � > & % 1 � " " � ( � � � � � � ( � � . & � � � � ( � ' , � " ' � ( ) � � � � � � � � 7 + * ' � - ! � * ( � � � .� " " � ( � � � � � � � ' 0 , � � " � ' ' � + ! � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? � > & 3 1 � " " � ( � � / / � ( � ' � � � � ) ( � * ' � � , � ' � " " ! � � / * / / � ( - * + ! � , � � ' � � . � �: � ) , � � � - 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � D � � .2 � ( �? � > & 9 1 � " " � ( � ) , � ! - ) * ( � + � ' � � � ' ' � ' & , � 0 �  � ( " � ' ' � + ! � & � � ' � " " � ( � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? � @ & % T " - * � � ! * � - � ' � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � � � � ) ! � - � " � ( � � � � � � . ' � � " ' & - �  � ! � " � � � �" * ( * � � � � ( ' * � - � � � � . * � � � � ( � B � � ( � � � � � ' ' " � ) � / � ) � � ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . �" ( � S � ) � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � @ & 3 8 � + ! � ) � 5 � * � - " ( � � � � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � � , � 2 � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � � � ! � ' � � ( ! � � H� � ' � ! * ( � � ' � * ! ! � ( ' * � - � � , � ( " ( �  � - � ( ' � / ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � + * ' � -' � (  � ) � ' & " * ( � � ) � ! * ( ! � � , � ' � 0 � � , : � ) , � � � - 7 + * ' � - + � ' � � � ' ' � ' ? ) � � � � � )� �  � ! � " � � � �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? - � ) * � � � � # ? - $ % & % M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - % & 3 M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - % & 9 M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - % & < M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � D � � .2 � ( �? - % & > M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � D � � .2 � ( �? - % & @ 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - &D � + ( * ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' ; � . � � � .? - % & C M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - % & E M M M T 1 � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? - 3 & % M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �? - 3 & 3 M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � D � � .2 � ( �? - 3 & 9 M M M T 1 � D � � .2 � ( �? - 9 & % M M M T 1 � ; � . � � � .? - 9 & 3 M M M T 1 � ; � . � � � .



� �

? - 9 & 9 M M M T 1 � D � � .2 � ( �? - 9 & < M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - 9 & > M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? - 9 & @ M M M T 1 � & 2 � 0 � 74 � - � ; � . � � � .? � � ( . � � ) �: � ' � ! � � � ) �# ? : $ % & % M * � � � * � � * � - � " - * � � � � � ( . � � ) � ( � ' " � � ' � * � - " ( � " * ( � - � � ' ' " ! * � '� � ) ! � - � � . � � ( K ! ! 7 N * 5 * ( - ' M � � � . * � � � � 8 ! * � * � - D � ) * ! ? � � ( . � � ) �; " � ( * � � � � ' 8 ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? : % & 3 J �  � � � � ( �  � ! � � ( * + � ! � � � � ' � / � � � � ) � " * ! * � - ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � - 0 * � ' � �� � � � . * � � " � � � � � � * ! - * � * . � ' & � � ) ! � - � � , � ' � � ) * " � � * ! " ! * � � � � . * � - , * 5 * ( -� � � � . * � � � � " ! * � � � � . 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & 9 � ( � * � � * : � ) , � � � - ? � � ( . � � ) � M * � * . � � � � � " ! * � � , * � � � ) � � " * ' ' � '* ! ! , * 5 * ( - ' & � � � ( . � � ) � � ' & * � - - � ' * ' � � ( ' & * � - � ( * � � � � " ! � � � � ' * � -� � � ( . � � ) � ' � (  � ) � " ( �  � - � ( ' � � � , � " ! * � * � - " ( � ) � - � ( � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & < 8 * ( � � ) � " * � � � � � , �N � � " M � - - ! � 1 ) , � � ! * ' * : � - � ( � ' ' ( � * - � ' , � ! � � ( 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �? : % & > � � � � ( � � � � * ' , � ! � � ( � � . " ! * � / � ( ( � ' � - � � � ' ' � � � , � / � , � 4 � � � � ' H � : �  � ( 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & @ � ( � * � � * " ! * � / � ( - � � � ' � � ) * � � � * ! ' , � ! � � ( � � . - � ( � � . � � � ( . � � ) � � ' * � -- � ' * ' � � ( ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �? : % & C J � ) ! � - � ( * � ! 0 * � & � � � � ( ' � * � � & , * 5 � * � & * � - � � , � ( 0 � * � , � ( �  � � � ' � � � , �� � � ( . � � ) � � * � * . � � � � � " ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & E ? � ' � ( � � , * � ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � - " � ( ' � � � � ! , *  � * - � B � * � � * � - " ( � " � (+ * ) H � " " � 0 � ( ' � � ( ) � ' & � B � � " � � � � & * � - � ( * � � � � . / � ( - � ' * ' � � ( ' & , * 5 * ( - ' &* � - � � � ( . � � ) � � ' & � ' " � ) � * ! ! � � � ( � � ' � ! � H � ! � � ( ) � � � � � � � � ( . � � ) � � '' � ) , * ' / ! � � - � � . � ( . � ( . � ( � ' ) � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & I � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � 0 * � � ( ' , � - � * � * . � � � � � " ( � . ( * � ' * � - " ( � S � ) � '� , * � 0 � ! ! , � ! " � � � � � � . * � � / ! � � - � � . 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? : % & % L � � � � � � � � � � ' � ( � ) � ! � ( � . � ! * � � - �  � ! � " � � � � � � � , � 1 " � ) � * ! = ! � � - N * 5 * ( -K ( � * 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & % % ? - � ) * � � " ( � " � ( � � � 0 � � ( ' * + � � � / ! � � - ( � ' H & � � ' � ( * � ) � & - �  � ! � " � � � �� " � � � � ' & * � - / ! � � - " ( � � / � � . & * � - � - � ) * � � ( � ' � - � � � ' * + � � � - � ' * ' � � ( * � -� � � ( . � � ) � " ( � � � ) � ! * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �? : % & % 3 M * � � � * � � * � � � � ( . � � ) � " ( � " * ( � - � � ' ' ' � ) � � � � � � � , � � � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � * ' *( � ' � � ( ) � / � ( ) � � � 5 � � ' � � � � � ( . � � ) � ( � ' � � ( ) � ' * � - " ( � ) � - � ( � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : % & % 9 � ( � * � � * � � � � ( . � � ) �  � ! � � � � � ( � � � 0 � ( H * � - * � � � � ( . � � ) �) � � � � � � ) * � � � � ' � ' � � � � � + � � � � ( ) � � ( - � � * � � " ( � ) � - � ( � ' * � -� � � � / � ) * � � � � ' � � � , � �  � � � � / * , * 5 * ( - � ( - � ' * ' � � ( 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? : 3 & % M * � � � * � � & � " . ( * - � & � ( � � " ! � � � � � ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( ' � ' � � � ' * � - 0 * � � () � �  � � * � ) � ' � ' � � � ' ' � ) , * ' - � � ) , � ' & ) � !  � ( � ' & * � - � , � � � � � ) � " * ! 0 * � � (* � - 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( ' � ' � � � ' � � 0 � � , ' � * � - * � ! � * ' � % X ' � � ( � ' # % L L � � * (' � � ( � ' $ 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? : 3 & 3 M * � � � * � � * � - � " . ( * - � + ( � - . � ' * � - ( � * - ' � � 0 � � , ' � * � - � � � � - * � � � � / ( � �* � ! � * ' � % X ' � � ( � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? : 3 & 9 J - � � � � / � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' 0 , � ( � � � ) ( � * ' � - ! �  � ! ' � / ( � ' � ! � � � ) � * ( � " � ' ' � + ! � &' � ) , * ' � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � , * � ) � � ! - 0 � � , ' � * � - * > L L 7 � � * ( ' � � ( � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? : 3 & < M * � � � * � � * � - � " . ( * - � + * ) H � " " � 0 � ( * � - , � * � � � . ' � ' � � � ' � � � � 0 � * � -) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .? : 3 & > ? � ' � ( � � , * � ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' * ( � ' � ( � ) � � ( * ! ! � ' � � � - * � - * + ! � � � 0 � � , ' � * � -, � *  � ' � � 0 / * ! ! * � - , � . , ' " � � - 0 � � - . � ' � ' & * � - � � " ! � � � � � ' � � ( �0 � � - � 0 ' * � - - � � ( ' 0 , � ( � � � ) � ' ' * ( � � � ) ( � � � ) * ! / * ) � ! � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? � � ( . � # ? $ % & % " ( � � ) � " ! � ' & 0 � � , � � ' � - �  � ! � " � � � � ) � � ) � � � ( * � � - � � � , �  � ! ! * . � &� � � . , + � ( , � � - ' & - � 0 � � � 0 � & . * � � 0 * � � � 6 � - � ' � * ( � * ' � � ( � - � ) � � , � ) ! � � � ! � ' � ( *  � ! ! � - / ( � � , � � ' � � . � � ' , � " " � � . * � - � � " � + ! � ) � ( * � ' � �� " � � � � ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? % & 3 1 � " " � ( � " � + ! � ) � ( * � ' � � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' 8 * ( H * � - : � - � ! � � ' O) � � � � � � ( ( * " � - � ( * � ' � � + � ' � ' ' � ) , * ' � , � P � ( ! � � . � � � 7 M � � � " � ! � � ( D � � H O *P � ( ! � � . � � � 7 M � � � " � ! � � ( ! � . , � ( * � ! ) � � � � � � ( � ( * � � ' � * � � � � � � : � ) , � � � - � /� , � � " " � ( � � � � � � + � ) � � � ' *  * � ! * + ! � * � - ! � ) * ! ' , � � � ! � + � ' ' � (  � ) � &) * ( " � � ! � � . & * � - ( � - � ' , * ( � � . " ( � . ( * � ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .



� Y

? % & 9 � � � ' � - � ( � � � ( . � � / / � ) � � � ) � * � - * ! � � ( � * � �  � / � � ! ' 0 , � � " � ( ) , * ' � � .� � � � ) � " * !  � , � ) ! � ' & ( � ) � . � � 5 � � . � , � ( � � * � + � ! � � � � � - � " � � � � ' * � � , � '� � � � / � ( , � *  � - � � �  � , � ) ! � ' * � -  � , � ) ! � ' / � ( / � ( ' � ( � ' " � � - � ( ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? % & < = * ) � ! � � * � � ) � � / � ( � � ) � ) * ! ! ' & 0 � + � � * ( ' * � - � � , � (  � ( � � * ! � � � � � � . ' 0 , � �/ � * ' � + ! � � � - � ) ( � * ' � � ( *  � ! + � � � 0 � � � " ! � � � � ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? % & > 8 ( � � � � � � , � G � Z F � ( � � � � 0 � + " * . � 0 , � ) , " ( �  � - � ' � � / � ( � * � � � � � � � , �* + �  � � ( * � ' " � ( � * � � � � � " � � � � ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? % & @ 1 � " " � ( � � , � � � ' � * ! ! * � � � � � / " ( �  * � � * � - " � + ! � ) � ! � ) � ( � )  � , � ) ! � # ? F $) , * ( . � � . ' � * � � � � ' � � ) � �  � � � � � � ! � ) * � � � � ' R � � � ' � - � ( � � ' � * ! ! � � . � � � * �� , � 2 � 0 � � � � � � ( & � , � 8 * ( H * � - : � - � * � - * ! � � . � ( *  � ! ) � ( ( � - � ( ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? % & C 4 � ( H 0 � � , G M 8 * � - F ? � � � / � � - / � � - � � . / � ( ? F ) , * ( . � � .� � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? % & E � � ! ! * + � ( * � � 0 � � , � ( �  � ? ! � ) � ( � ) F � ( � � � � � � " � + ! � ) � 5 � � , � � ( 0 � + " * . � &, � ' � � ! � ) � ( � )  � , � ) ! � - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ' & * � - � � / � ( � ( � ' � - � � � ' * + � � �� ! � ) � ( � )  � , � ) ! � � � ) , � � ! � . � & � � ) � � � �  � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .? % & I 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � F � ( � � � � ? � � ( . � * � - � ! � � * � � K ) � � � � [ � � 0 � ( H & � ( �  �? ! � ) � ( � ) F � ( � � � � * � - � , � F � ( � � � � � ! � * � � � � � � ' � � * ! � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � � , �� ' � � / � ! � ) � ( � ) * � - + � � 7 - � � ' � !  � , � ) ! � ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? % & % L � � � ' � - � ( ( � B � � ( � � . ? F ) , * ( . � � . ' � * � � � � ' / � ( � � 0 ) � � � � ( ) � * !- �  � ! � " � � � � R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? % & % % T " - * � � 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � � � � ) ! � - � ! * � . � * . � � � ) ! * ( � / � " � ( � � � � � � .( � B � � ( � � � � � ' / � ( � � 0 � ! � ) � ( � )  � , � ) ! � ) , * ( . � � . � � ' � * ! ! * � � � � ' * � -' � " " � ( � � , � � � . � � � . - �  � ! � " � � � � � / � , � ' � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? % & % 3 8 ! * � � " . ( * - � ' � � � � 0 � ( � * - ' � � � * H � � , � � � � ( � + � ) � ) ! � * � -" � - � ' � ( � * � / ( � � � - ! � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �? % & % 9 1 � " " � ( � � " . ( * - � � . ' � - � 0 * ! H ' � � � , �  � ! ! * . � � � � � ) � � ( * . � 0 * ! H � � . 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? 3 & % J - � � � � / � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � * � - � / / � ) � � � ) � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � � � � � ) � " * !+ � � ! - � � . ' * � - / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � - + � � ! - � / / � ) � � � ) � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � � � � * � � � * !7" � ( / � ( � * � ) � " ( � . ( * � ' 0 , � � �  � ( + � � ! - � � . & ( � � �  * � � � . � ( � " . ( * - � � .* � � 2 � 0 � + � � ! - � � . ' R � �  � ! � " " � ! � ) � � ' / � ( �  * ! � * � � � . " � ( ) , * ' � ' * � -) * " � � * ! � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � , * � � ' � ! � / � ) � ) ! � * � * ! � ' � ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .
? 3 & 3 1 � " " � ( � � - � ) * � � � � * ! * ) � �  � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' � � 0 � � � � ( . � / * � ( ' & � , �� � � � � � � � � ? � � ( . � � * ' , + � * ( - & ! � � � ( * � � ( � - � ' � ( � + � � � � � * � - � � � ( . �) � � � � � � � � * ) � �  � � � � ' � , * � " ( �  � - � ( � ' � - � � � ' 0 � � , � � / � ( � * � � � � * + � � �� � � ( . � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � * � - ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' ' � ) , * '* -  * � ) � - 0 � � - , � * � � � . & * � ( 7 ' � � ( ) � , � * � " � � " ' & . � � � , � ( � * ! & ' � ! * ( 8 F* � - " ( � . ( * � ' � � ( � - � ) � � � � ( . � � ' � R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? 3 & 9 � � � ( - � � * � � 0 � � , ? / / � ) � � � ) � F � ( � � � � & F � ( � � � � G * ' * � - � , � ' � * � �4 � * � , � ( � 5 * � � � � K ' ' � ' � * � ) � 8 ( � . ( * � * � - " ( � � � � � � , � ' � " ( � . ( * � '� , ( � � . , � , � � � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? 3 & < 8 ( � � � � � * � � ' � * � � � ( ( � . � � � * ! " ( � . ( * � � , * � � � ) � � ( * . � ' * � - A � (� � ) � � � �  � 5 � ' � , � ( � � �  * ! � / � ! - � ( � � � / / � ) � � � � 0 � � - ' � �  � ' / � ( � � 0 � ( ? 8 K) � ( � � / � � - � � - � ! ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? 3 & > � � � ' � - � ( � � ) ! � - � � . * � * � ( � + � ) - � . � ' � � � � 0 � � , � � � , * � � ) * " � � ( � * ' " * ( �� / � , � 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( � ( � * � � � � � ' � ' � � � R 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - D � � .2 � ( �? 3 & @ 1 � " " � ( � � , � � / / � ) � � � � * � - ' � ' � * � � * + ! � � ' � � / 0 � � - / � ( / � � ! * � - � * � � � * � �/ � ( � ' � , � * ! � , * � - / � ( � ' � ) * ( + � � ' � � ( * . � * � - � " � * H � R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? 3 & C ( � � ) , � � - � � �) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � & ( � � �  * � � � � ' & * � - A � (* - - � � � � � ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? 9 & % � �  � ! � " " � � � � � � * ! ' � * � - * ( - ' / � ( ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � . � � � ( * � � � � / * ) � ! � � � � ' &� � ) ! � - � � . � � � � . * � � � � � / * � ' � , � � � ) * � - � * � � ( * ! ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � � " * ) � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? 9 & 3 � � ' � . � * � � ' " � ) � / � ) ! � ) * � � � � ' * ' " ( � / � ( ( � - ' � � � ' / � ( � , � ' � � � � . � / � � � 7� � � � ( � - ' � ! * ( . � � � ( * � � � � " ( � S � ) � ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? 9 & 9 � � � � � � � � � � " * ( � � ) � " * � � � � * � - " ( � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � ( � � . * ( ( * � . � � � � � '0 , � � �  � ( " � ' ' � + ! � R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .? 9 & < ? � ' � ( � � , * � � , � ! � � . � � ( � � * � * . � � � � � " ! * � / � ( � , � 2 � 0 � = � ( � ' � * ! ! � 0/ � ( ' � ' � * � � * + ! � � � � ( . � " ( � - � ) � � � � / � ( � , � + � � � / � � � / � , � � � 0 � & ' � ) , * '' � ' � * � � * + ! � + � � � * ' ' , * (  � ' � � � . # / � ( � 0 � � - $ R 2 � 0 � = � ( � ' �� � � � � � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .? < & % � �  � ! � " * � � � � ( . � * ) � � � � " ! * � / � ( � , � 2 � 0 � � � � � " ! � � � � � � , � � � � ( . �. � * ! ' * � - * ) � � � � ' � � � , � ' " ! * � * � - * ' ' � ' � 0 � � , �  * ! � * � � � . � �  � ' � � � � � ' � �� � � ( . � � / / � ) � � � ) � * � - ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � , * � + � � � / � � � , �� � 0 � R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � &? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( 1 , � ( �2 � ( �? < & 3 M * � � � * � � � � � ( . � ) � � ' � � " � � � � - * � * / � ( � � � � ) � " * ! + � � ! - � � . ' � ' � � . � , �? �  � ( � � � � � � * ! 8 ( � � � ) � � � � K . � � ) � 8 � ( � / � ! � � M * � * . � ( ' � / � 0 * ( � / � ( ? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( ; � . � � � .



� \

* � * ! � 5 � � . � � � ( . � � / / � ) � � � ) � * � - ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' * � - � ��  * ! � * � � � , � ( � ' � ! � ' / ( � � � �  � ' � � � � � ' � � ( � - � ) � � � � ( . � ) � � ' � � " � � � �* � - ) � ' � ' R? < & 9 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � : � ) , � � � - � ! � � * � � K ) � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � - � ) * � � � , �) � � � � � � � � � � � � � ( . � � / / � ) � � � ) � & � � � ( . � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � * � - ( � � � 0 * + ! �� � � ( . � � � ) , � � ! � . � � ' * � - � � ) , � � B � � ' R ? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( ; � . � � � .? < & < K ' ' � ' � � , � 2 � 0 � 0 � � , * " " ! � � � . / � ( . ( * � � ' * � - � � ) � � � �  � ' � � ( � - � ) �� � � ( . � � ' � * � - � � ) ( � * ' � � , � � ' � � / ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � R ? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( ; � . � � � .? < & > 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � 2 � 0 � M * � * . � ( � � / � ! ! � � � " ! � � � � � � , � 3 L L C 2 � 0 �? � � ( . � � � � ' � (  * � � � � 8 � ! � ) � R ? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( D � � .2 � ( �? < & @ J � / � ( � � , � 2 � 0 � * + � � � � , � F � ( � � � � � ! � � * � � 8 ! � - . � * � - * ' ' � ' � 0 � � , ? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= � � � ( � D * � -T ' � # = D T $ % & % J �  � ' � � � � � � � ) � " * ! � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � , * � * ! ! � 0 / � ( � � 0- �  � ! � " � � � � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .= D T % & 3 � ( � * � � " � ! � ) � � ' � , * � � � ) � � ( * . � * / / � ( - * + ! � , � � ' � � . - �  � ! � " � � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T % & 9 8 ( �  � - � � � ) , � � ) * ! * ' ' � ' � * � ) � � � " ( � " � ( � � � 0 � � ( ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .= D T % & < � ( � * � � 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � , * � ' � " " � ( � � , � * + �  � � � � � � � � � - � ' � ' * � -" ( � , � + � � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T % & > � ( � * � � / � ( � 7 + * ' � - 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � , * � � � ) ! � - � * ( ) , � � � ) � � ( * ! * � -- � ' � . � ( � B � � ( � � � � � ' � � + � � � � � � ) � ( � * � � - � ' � ( � ) � ' & � ' " � ) � * ! ! � � � 6 � - 7� ' � * ( � * ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T % & @ ? 6 " ! � ( � - � � ' � � � 7 + * ' � - 5 � � � � . 0 , � � � " - * � � � . � , � ! * � - � ' � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T 3 & % � � � � � � � � � � " ( � , � + � � - * � * . � � . � ( - * � . � ( � � ' � � " � ' � / - �  � ! � " � � � � � �' � � ' � � �  � � ( ) � � ' � (  � - * ( � * ' ' � ) , * ' / ! � � - " ! * � � � ( ' � � � " ' ! � " � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T 3 & 3 : � ' � ( � ) � ) � ( � * � � � � " � ' � / - �  � ! � " � � � � � � ' � � ' � � �  � � ( , � . , " ( � � ( � � �� * � � ( * ! * ( � * ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �= D T 3 & 9 ? � ) � � ( * . � - �  � ! � " � � � � � , * � " ( � � � ) � ' � * � � ( * ! ( � ' � � ( ) � ' * � - " ( � ' � (  � '' ) � � � ) * � - A � ( , � ' � � ( � ) ) , * ( * ) � � ( � / : � ) , � � � - 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N � ' � � ( � ): � ' � � ( ) � '# N : $ % & % 8 ( � � � ) � * � - " ( � ' � (  � � , � : � � � - � , � ( ) , + � ) � � � � � � � � . � � " ( �  � - �! � * + � ! � � � * � - " ( � " � ( � � � � ' � ( * � ) � * ' 0 � ! ! * ' ( � � � � � � . ( � � � - '� * � � � � � * � ) � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .N : % & 3 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � � " ! * � / � � - � � . * � -� � " ! � � � � � * � � � � � / � * S � ( ( � � �  * � � � � ' * ' � � � - � - � � " ( � ' � (  � , � ' � � ( � ) * !� � � � . ( � � � * � - � � , * � ) � � , � " ( � " � ( � � 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .N : % & 9 8 ( � � � ) � & " ( � ' � (  � * � - ) � � � � � � � � � / � ! ! � � � � ! � 5 � � , � 2 � 0 � � � � � � ( * � -D � + ( * ( � + � � ! - � � . ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .N : % & < ? � ) � � ( * . � � , � " ( � ' � (  * � � � � * � - � � � ! � 5 * � � � � � / " ( �  * � � ! � � 0 � � - + � � ! - � � . '� / , � ' � � ( � ) ' � . � � / � ) * � ) � 0 � � , � � � , � � � 0 � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � &N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � ; � . � � � .N : % & > : � * " " ! � / � ( � , � 1 � * � � � / F � ( � � � � K . � � ) � � / � � � � � ( ) � * � - 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N : % & @ : �  � ' � � , � 2 � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � � � � � ) 7 * � -� * � � � � * ! ! � ( � ) � . � � 5 � - , � ' � � ( � ) ' � � � ' * ' 0 � ! ! * ' ! � � H ' � � , � ' � � ( � )" ( � ' � (  * � � � � ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � , * � ) � � ! - , � ! " � 0 � � ( ' � � � * � * . � � , � ' �" ( � " � ( � � � ' ' � * ' � � " ( � ' � (  � � , � � ( � � � � . ( � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N : % & C ? � ' � ( � � , * � � � 0 � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' * ! ! � 0 / � ( , � ' � � ( � ) � � � � ( " ( � � �  � ' � . � * . � * � -, � ' � � ( � ) � * ( H � ( ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N : % & E 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � � - �  � ! � " * 0 * ! H � � . * � - A � ( : � ) ( � * � � � �� � � � � � � � � D � � .2 � ( �N : 3 & % ;  � ( ' � � ( � . � ! * ( � * � � � � � * � ) � � / � , � . ( � � � - ' & " � + ! � ) * ) ) � ' ' ( � � � � '� � � � � � ( � � � P ( � -* ) ) � ' ' � - / ( � � � � � � � � ( � : � * - R N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � &� � � � � � ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' ; � . � � � .N : 3 & 3 4 � ( H 0 � � , � � � � � � ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' * � - � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � �� ' � * + ! � ' , * � ( * � � � - ) � ( " ' � /  � ! � � � � � ( ' � � - � . ( *  � � * ( H � (� * � � � � � * � ) � � � � ( � B � � ( � � . " ( � / � ' ' � � � * ! � � � � (  � � � � � � � � � � � � ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' &N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � D � � .2 � ( �N : 3 & 9 � ( � * � � * � - " ( � ' � (  � - � . � � * ! / � ! � ' � / * ! ! 2 � 0 � ) � � � � � ( � ! � ' � � � . ' &� � ) ! � - � � . � � * . � ' � / . ( *  � ' � � � � * ( H � ( ' * ' 0 � ! ! * ' + � ( � * ! ( � ) � ( - ' N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � &� � � � � � ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' D � � .2 � ( �N : 3 & < 4 , � � * ( ) , * � � ! � . � ) * ! ' � � � ' � ( * ( � � / * ) � ' * ( � - � ' ) �  � ( � - - � ( � � . 2 � 0 � � (1 � * � � " ( � S � ) � ' ( � B � � ( � � . * � * ( ) , * � � ! � . � ) * ! ( � ' � � ( ) � ( �  � � 0 & 0 � ( H 0 � � ,� , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � � - � ) � � � � � � , � � * � � ( � * ! * � - * ' ' � ' '" ( � ' � (  * � � � � � " � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .N : 9 & % � � � � � � � � � � " � + ! � ) � 5 � * � - " ( �  � - � ' " * ) � / � ( : � ) , � � � - , � ' � � ( �" ( � . ( * � ' * � - - � ' " ! * � ' ' " � � ' � ( � - + � � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .



� ]

* � - : � ) , � � � - � � � � � � � � � 1 � � � � ( � � � � � ( & * � � � . � � , � ( ' & * � - ) � � � � � � �� � ' � " " � ( � * � - * -  � ( � � ' � " � + ! � ) �  � � � ' � , * � , *  � + � ) � � � ! � ) * ! ) � ! � � ( * !� ( * - � � � � � 'N : 9 & 3 : �  � ' � � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � " * . � � / � , � 2 � 0 � 0 � + ' � � � � � � � ) ! � - �, � ' � � ( � ) " , � � � ' * ' 0 � ! ! * ' ! � � H ' � � � � , � ( : � ) , � � � - , � ' � � ( � � � ! � � �( � ' � � ( ) � ' R D � � H ' ) � � ! - � � ) ! � - � � , � : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � �0 � + ' � � � & � � / � ( � * � � � � / � ( : � ) , � � � - , � ' � � ( � ( � ' � * ( ) , � ( ' � ( � 0 � � ( ' � /, � ' � � ( � ) * ( � � / * ) � ' * � - A � ( " ( � " � ( � � � ' & * � - ! � ' � ' * � - A � ( " , � � � . * ! ! � ( � � ' � / 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N : 9 & 9 � �  � ! � " * " ! * � � � - � . � � * ! ! � " ( � ' � (  � / ( * . � ! � " � + ! � ) ( � ) � ( - ' & ' � ) , * ' ! * � -( � ) � ( - ' * � - + � ( � , & � * ( ( � * . � * � - - � * � , ( � ) � ( - ' - * � � � . + * ) H � � � , � ! * � �% E ^ _ * � - % I ^ _ ) � � � � ( � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � D � � .2 � ( �N : 9 & < 4 � ( H 0 � � , : � ) , � � � - N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � � / � � - ' � ) � ( � & ) ! � � * � � 7) � � � ( � ! ! � - ' � � ( * . � ! � ) * � � � � ' / � ( , � ' � � ( � ) ) � ! � � ( * ! * ' ' � � ' � � � ' � � ( � - � � � , �2 � 0 � F * � ! � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N � � ' � � . # N $ % & % 4 , � � � " - * � � � . 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' & � - � � � � / � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � (- �  � ! � " � � � � � / *  * ( � � � � � / , � � ' � � . � � " � ' & / � ( � 6 * � " ! � * ! ! � 0 � � . � � 6 � -( � ' � - � � � � * ! * � - ) � � � � ( ) � * ! � ' � & , � . , � ( � � � � - � � ' � � � & � ( � � � B � �* ) ) � ' ' � ( � , � � ' � � . � � ) � ( � * � � � - � � � � / � � - - � ' � ( � ) � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N % & 3 � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � � , � � 6 � ' � � � ) � � / � , � � � + � ! � , � � � " * ( H & * � -' � " " � ( � * - - � � � � � * ! * / / � ( - * + ! � , � � ' � � . - �  � ! � " � � � � � � � , � " * ( H 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .N % & 9 � ( � * � � * � � 0 � , � � ' � � . ) � � � � � � � � � , * � ) * � � - � � � � / � � � � - ' * � - " * ( � � � (0 � � , � ( . * � � 5 * � � � � ' � � , � ! " ' � ) � ( � / � � - � � . * � - � - � � � � / � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' / � () � � ' � ( � ) � � � � � ( * - * " � * � � � � � / , � � ' � � . ' � � ) H & * ' 0 � ! ! * ' * � - � � � , �) ( � * � � � � � / * / / � ( - * + ! � , � � ' � � . " � ! � ) � � ' � , * � * ( � 0 � ! ) � � � - + � + � � ,- �  � ! � " � ( ' * � - ( � ' � - � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N % & < ? � ) � � ( * . � ) � � ) � � � ( * � � - ( � ' � - � � � � * ! - �  � ! � " � � � � � � * ( � * ' � - � � � � / � � - / � (. ( � 0 � , 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �N % & > � � � ' � - � ( " * ( � � ) � " * � � � � � � � , � = ? M K � � � � � � � � � : * � � � . 1 � ' � � � 0 , � ) ,) * � ! � 0 � ( �  � ( * ! ! , � � � � � ' � ( * � ) � ) � ' � ' / � ( , � � � � 0 � � ( ' � � � , � 1 " � ) � * != ! � � - N * 5 * ( - K ( � * 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �N % & @ 8 ( �  � - � � � ) , � � ) * ! * ' ' � ' � * � ) � � � , � � � � 0 � � ( ' � � � , � 1 " � ) � * ! = ! � � -N * 5 * ( - K ( � * � , * � - � ' � ( � � � � � " ! � � � � � / ! � � - " ( � � / � � . � � * ' � ( � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .N % & C 1 � " " � ( � & * � - ' , * ( � � � / � ( � * � � � � * + � � � & " ( � . ( * � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � , * �* ' ' � ' � ' � � � � ( ' � ( ! � 0 � � + � ! � � � ( � ' � - � � � ' ( � � * � � � � � , � � ( , � � � ' ' � ) , * 'N � � � 1 , * ( � F � ( � � � � & M � * ! ' � � 4 , � � ! ' & * � - [ � � . , + � ( : � - � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .N % & E 1 � " " � ( � & * � - ' , * ( � � � / � ( � * � � � � * + � � � & " ( � . ( * � ' * � - ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � , * �, � ! " � � ! � 0 � ( ) � ' � � / , � � � � 0 � � ( ' , � " ' � ) , * ' � � � ( . � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � &0 � * � , � ( � 5 * � � � � & * � - � � � ! � � � * ' ' � ' � * � ) � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &? � � ( . � � � � ( - � � * � � ( ; � . � � � .N % & I 1 � " " � ( � " ( � . ( * � ' * � - / � � - � � . ' � � ( ) � ' / � ( " ( � ' � (  � � . * � - ( � � �  * � � � ., � ' � � ( � ) � ( � ! - � ( , � � � ' � , * � ) * � , � ! " � 0 � � ( ' � * � � � * � � , � ' � � ( � )) , * ( * ) � � ( * � - ! �  * + � ! � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � &N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � ; � . � � � .[ * � � ( * !: � ' � � ( ) � '# [ : $ % & % J - � � � � / � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � ) � � ' � (  � ! * � - ' ) � � � * � � � � . � ( * - S � � � � � . � �* + �  � ! � ' � � - ) � � ' � (  * � � � � " ( � � ( � � � � ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & 3 ? � ) � � ( * . � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � � ( " ( � � � ) � � � � � / * + �  � ! � ' � � - ) � � ' � (  * � � � �" ( � � ( � � � � ' � � " ( �  * � � ! * � - ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & 9 T � � ! � 5 � � , � + � ' � *  * � ! * + ! � ' ) � � � ) � � � � � / � ( � � , � ) ( � * � � � � � /' � " " ! � � � � � * ! ! * � - � ' � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' * � - � * " ' � , * � 0 � � ! - / � ( � , � () � � ' � (  � � ( " ( � � � ) � ' � � ' � � �  � � * � � ( * ! * ( � * ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & < � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � � , � � / / � ( � ' � / � , � " � + ! � ) * � - " ( �  * � � � ( . * � � 5 * � � � � '' � ) , * ' � , � : � ) , � � � - � � � ' � (  * � � � � � � � � � ' ' � � � & : � ) , � � � - 2 ( * � ! '� � � � � � � � � & * � - : � ) , � � � - D * � - 2 ( � ' � � � " ( � � � ) � ' � � ' � � �  � � * � � ( * !* ( � * ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � &2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .[ : % & > = * ) � ! � � * � � * � � 0 � 7 0 � - � - � ' ) � ' ' � � � * + � � � � , � - �  � ! � " � � � � * � -� * � * . � � � � � � / � ( * � ! ' * � - � ( * � ! � � � 0 � ( H ' � � : � ) , � � � - � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & @ M � � � � � 5 � � , � / ( * . � � � � * � � � � * � - � � � ( � ' � � � � � � � ' � � ' � � �  � 0 � ! - ! � / � , * + � � * � '* � - / � ( � ' � ' & � � ) ! � - � � . � � � � � . � � � ' N * + � � * � T � � � ' * � - 4 � ! - ! � / � 2 ( *  � !� � ( ( � - � ( ' & � , ( � � . , ! * � - � ' � (G ( � 0 � , " ( � � ) � " ! � ' ' � ) , * ' ) ! � ' � � ( � � . - �  � ! � " � � � � & ' � � � � . - �  � ! � " � � � �� � * � * � � � ( � � " ( � ' � (  � ) � � � � . � � � ' , * + � � * � * ( � * ' & * � - � , ( � � . ,) � � ( - � � * � � � . 0 � � , � � � . , + � ( � � . � � 0 � ' � � + � ( - � ( * ( � * ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & C : � ' � ( � ) � - �  � ! � " � � � � � � ' � � � " ' ! � " � ' + � � 0 � � � 3 L X * � - 9 > X & ) ! � / / ' &* � - ( � - . � ! � � � ' �  � ( I L L / � � � � ! �  * � � � � & * � - " ( � , � + � � * ! ! ' � ( � ) � � ( * !- �  � ! � " � � � � # � � ) ! � - � � . ( � � � 0 * + ! � � � � ( . � . � � � ( * � � � � / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � -- � ' � ( � + � � � � � A � ( * � ' � � ' ' � � � � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � $ � � ' ! � " � ' . ( � * � � ( � , * � 9 > X & � �� ( - � ( � � � * � � � * � � , * + � � * � ) � � � � ) � � ( ' * � - � � � � . * � � � ( � ' � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �



� `

[ : % & E � ( � * � � * � - � * � � � * � � * ! � + ( * ( � � / � ) � ! � . � ) * ! ' � � - � � ' * � - � * " ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & I 8 * ( � � � ( 0 � � , ' � * � � * � - ( � . � � � * ! � ( . * � � 5 * � � � � ' � � ' � ) � ( � / � � - � � . * � -) � ! ! * + � ( * � � � � " ( � S � ) � ' � , * � 0 � � ! - ' � " " � ( � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � � / / � ( � ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & % L � � � ' � ( � ) � � ( * � ! ' � � *  � � - ' � � ' � � �  � � * � � ( * ! * ( � * ' * � - � � � � � � 5 � � � " * ) �� � 0 * � � ( B � * ! � � � & 0 � ! - ! � / � & ' � � ! ' & * � - � � , � ( ( � ' � � ( ) � ' : � ) , � � � - 2 ( * � ! '� � � � � � � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & % % � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � � �  * ' �  � ' " � ) � � ' ) � � � ( � ! � / / � ( � ' � � ) ! � - � � . ( � � �  * !* � - � � � � . * � � � � � / W * " * � � ' � V � � � 0 � � - & G * ( ! � ) M � ' � * ( - & P * ( + � ( ( � &P � ) H � , � ( � & * � - � � , � ( / * ' � ' " ( � * - � � . � � � 7 � * � �  � " ! * � � ' R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � D � � .2 � ( � &; � . � � � .[ : % & % 3 8 ( �  � - � � - � ) * � � � � * ! � * � � ( � * ! ' & * � - ) � � ' � - � ( ) � � - � ) � � � . � � � ( � * ) , & � �! * � - � 0 � � ( ' * + � � � + � ' � � * � * . � � � � � " ( * ) � � ) � ' / � ( ' � ' � * � � * + � ! � � � &) � � ' � (  * � � � � & * � - � �  � ( � � � � � � * ! ' � � 0 * ( - ' , � " � / � * � � ( * ! * ( � * ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & % 9 � � � � � � � � � � " ( � , � + � � � , � ) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � � / � � 0 " ( � � ) � " * ! ' � ( � ) � � ( � ' � � � , �1 " � ) � * ! = ! � � - N * 5 * ( - K ( � * ' � / � , � 4 � � � � ' H � * � - N � � � � � . � � � : �  � ( ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & % < 8 ( � � � ) � ( �  � ( ) � ( ( � - � ( ' � � � � ' � ( � � , * � ' � ( � * � ' * � - ( �  � ( ' , *  � � , � ( � � �� , � �� � ( ( � - � ( � * " ' * � - � ' � * + ! � ' , � � . ' � � + * ) H ' / � ( ' � * ! ! ' � ( � * � ' - � ( � � .- �  � ! � " � � � � ( �  � � 0 # ' � * ! ! ' � ( � * � a ! � ' ' � , * � 3 ' B � * ( � � � ! � ' � /- ( * � � * . � * ( � * $ 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �[ : % & % > 1 * / � . � * ( - 0 * � � ( B � * ! � � � & ' � ( � * � ) , * � � � ! ' � * + � ! � � � & , * + � � * � ' & * � - , * + � � * �) � � � � ) � �  � � � + � " ( � � � ) � � � . ( � " * ( � * � * ( � * ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �[ : % & % @ 1 � " " � ( � * � - ) � � " � ( * � � 0 � � , 0 * � � ( B � * ! � � � � � ' � � � . � / / � ( � ' � � : � ) , � � � -* � - � , � ( � . � � � � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & % C 1 � " " � ( � � , � ) � � " ! � � � � � * � - � " - * � � ' � / ' � ( � * � . � � � � ( " , � )* ' ' � ' ' � � � � ' & 0 � � ! * � - � * " ' & * � - ( �  � ( ) � ( ( � - � ( � * " ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & % E J � " ! � � � � � / � * ' � + ! � " ( � S � ) � ' � - � � � � / � � - � � � , � 3 L % E ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( � * ' � � (" ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �[ : % & % I � � � � ( � ! ( � * - ( � � � / / * � - � ( � ' � � � + � � � " ! � � � � � � � . * � - � * � � � * � � � � . + � ' �� * � * . � � � � � " ( * ) � � ) � ' ( � B � � ( � - + � � , � F � ( � � � � M � � � ) � " * ! : � * - 'G � � � ( * ! 8 � ( � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .[ : % & 3 L J � � � . ( * � � * " " ! � ) * + ! � D � 0 J � " * ) � � �  � ! � " � � � � # D J � $ ' � * � - * ( - ' � � � �! * � - � ' � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & 3 % : �  � � 0 ! * � - � ' � ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � � � � ' � ( � ) � � " ! � * � ) � 0 � � , * ! ! F � ( � � � �* � - / � - � ( * ! ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � , * � " ( �  � - � ' � ( / * ) � 0 * � � ( " ( � � � ) � � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : % & 3 3 1 � " " � ( � * � - " * ( � � ) � " * � � � � � , � F � ( � � � � 4 * � � ( ' , � - M * � * . � � � � �� , * � " ! * � � + * ' � � ' R � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : 3 & % ? � ) � � ( * . � � , � � � " ! � � � � � * � � � � � / + � ' � � �  � ( � � � � � � * ! � * � * . � � � � �" ( * ) � � ) � ' � � / * ( � � ( / � ( � ' � + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : 3 & 3 ? 6 " ! � ( � * � � � - � � . 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � � * ! ! � 0 / � (  * ! � � 7 * - - � - � (* ) ) � ' ' � ( � � � � � ( " ( � ' � ' & � , * � * ( � � � � ) � ( ( � � � ! � � 6 � � " � � , ( � � . , ' � * � � ! * 0 &� � / * ( � � ( / � ( � ' � " ( � " � ( � � � ' * ' * � � * � ' � / / � � * � ) � * ! ! � � * � � � * � � � � . ! * ( . �" * ( ) � ! ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : 3 & 9 K  � � - � , � ) ( � * � � � � � / ! * � - ! � ) H � - " * ( ) � ! ' - � ( � � . ' � + - �  � ' � � � � / / * ( � � (/ � ( � ' � ( � ! * � - ' + � � � ) � � ( * . � � . � , � � * � � � � � * � ) � � / ( � . , � ' � / 0 * � * � -* ) ) � ' ' � ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : 3 & < ? � ) � � ( * . � � � 7 ' � � � " ( � S � ) � ' � ( - �  � ! � " � � � � ' � , * � " ( �  � - � � ) � ' � ' � � �' � (  � ) � ' � ( � � � � . * � � ( � � � / / � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : 3 & > � � � � � � � � � � ' � " " � ( � * . ( � ) � ! � � ( * ! ! � ( � ! * � � - � � � � ( " ( � ' � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .[ : 3 & @ ? � ) � � ( * . � : � ) , � � � - ( � ' � - � � � ' * � - + � ' � � � ' ' � ' � � + � � � ( " ( � ) � ( �! � ) * ! ! � . ( � 0 � / � � - ' � (  * ! � � 7 * - - � - " ( � - � ) � ' + � " ( �  � - � � . ' " * ) � / � (� * ( H � � ' * � - * ! ! � 0 � � . ' * ! � � / . � � - ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .[ : 3 & C 1 � " " � ( � " ( � " � ( � � � 0 � � ( " * ( � � ) � " * � � � � � � � , � F 2 T ' � F * ! � � K " " ( * � ' * !# � � ( ( � � � T ' � $ 8 ( � . ( * � & � , � / � - � ( * ! D * � - ?  * ! � * � � � � * � - 1 � � �K ' ' � ' ' � � � � # D ? 1 K $ " ( � . ( * � & * � - � � , � (  � ! � � � * ( � " ( � . ( * � ' * '� " � � � � ' / � ( ! * � - ) � � ' � (  * � � � � * � - / � � * � ) � * ! + � � � / � � ' � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : 9 & % T " - * � � � , � " ( �  � � � ' ! � " � ( / � ( � � - # 3 L L 3 $ 1 ) � � � ) F � � 0 ' , � - K ' ' � ' ' � � � �� � � - � � � � / � * � - � * " " � + ! � ) " ( � � ( � � � � ' / � ( ! * � - ' ) * " � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � & * � -( � ' � ( � ) � - �  � ! � " � � � � � , * � 0 � � ! - ) � � " ( � � � ' � � , � ' � � - � � � � / � � - � � 0 ' , � - ' 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : 9 & 3 ? � ) � � ( * . � ) ( � * � �  � - �  � ! � " � � � � � , * � � � � � � � 5 � ' + � � ,  � ' � * ! * � -� �  � ( � � � � � � * ! � � " * ) � ' � � � , � ! * � - ' ) * " � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : 9 & 9 K - � " � 5 � � � � . ( � . � ! * � � � � ' � , * � � � � � . * � � � � � ' � " � ! ! � � � � � * � - ! � . , �" � ! ! � � � � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : 9 & < " ( � � ) � " ! � ' ' � ) , * ' ) � � ) � � � ( * � � - - � 0 � � � 0 � - �  � ! � " � � � � � � � ( - � ( � � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �



� b

[ : < & % T � � ! � 5 � * � * � * . � � � � � " ! * � / � ( � , � 2 � 0 � = � ( � ' � & * � - ) � � � � � � * ! ! �* ' ' � ' ' / � ( � � ) � ' ' * ( � * � � � - � � � � ' � � � , � " ! * � � � � � ' � ( � + � ' �' � � 0 * ( - ' , � " � / � , * � ! * � - * � - / � ( � ' � * � - � � � � ' � ( � � , * � � , �( � B � � ( � � � � � ' � / � , � c d e f g h i j k l k m h n o k f g p q r s g t u v h f t k d l e g q h fp k t g d q w g q h f t e f x y z { m q w | w w k t t } e t k o k f g * ( � + � � � . � � � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &� � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � & 2 � 0 �= � ( � ' � � � � � � � � � � ; � . � � � .[ : < & 3 M * � * . � � ( * � ! - �  � ! � " � � � � * � - � ' * . � � � 2 � 0 � ! * � - ' � � " ( � � � ) �� � � . , + � ( � � . " ( � " � ( � � � 0 � � ( ( � . , � ' * � - " � ' ' � + ! � ' � � ' � � �  � � * � � ( * ! * ( � * '� ( ) � � ' � (  * � � � � " ( � � ( � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' � , � ' � ! � ' � � - " ( �  � � � ' ! � 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : < & 9 � ( � * � � * � � � � ) � " * ! " ( � " � ( � � � ' � * � * . � � � � � " � ! � ) � � � ) ! � - � � . ( � . , � ' � /0 * � & * ) ) � ' ' & ' * / � � � & * � - � * � � � � � * � ) � � � � ( - � ( � � � � ' � ( � + � � , � * � � ( * !( � ' � � ( ) � " ( � � � ) � � � � * � - " ( � " � ( ! * � - ' � � 0 * ( - ' , � " R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &� � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �[ : < & < � � � � ( � ! � , � . ( � 0 � , * � - ' " ( � * - � / � �  * ' �  � ' " � ) � � ' � � � � 0 � " ( � " � ( � � � ' R � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .[ : < & > T � � ! � 5 � � , � ) � � ' � (  * � � � � ( � ' � (  � / � � - � � " ( � � � ) � � � " � ( � * � � � * � � ( * !( � ' � � ( ) � ' * � - " � + ! � ) * ) ) � ' ' � � � , � � 0 , � ( � * " " ( � " ( � * � � � � � ' � (  * � � � �� � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .2 ( * � ' " � ( � * � � � �# 2 $ % & % J � " ! � � � � � , � . , " ( � � ( � � � * ) � � � � ' / ( � � ) � � " ! � � � - " ! * � � � � . ' � � - � � ' & ' � ) ,* ' � � 0 ' � - � 0 * ! H ' 0 � � , � � � , �  � ! ! * . � * ! � � . � , � � * ' � ' � - � � / P ( � - . � 1 � R* � - < � � 0 ) ( � ' ' 0 * ! H ' * � � , � P ( � - . � A : * � ! ( � * - A W � ! � � * � � � � ( ' � ) � � � � * '' � � � * ' � ' / � * ' � + ! � R 2 , � ' � * � ( � B � � ( � � - � � � � / � � � . / � � - � � . ' � � ( ) � '* � - A � ( � � � � . ( * � � � . � , � " ( � S � ) � ' � � � � � , � � * " � � * ! P � - . � � ~ ' ( � * -� * � � � � � * � ) � ' ) , � - � ! � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 % & 3 1 � " " � ( � � , � ) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � � / ' � - � 0 * ! H ' * � - + � H � " * � , ' � ( ! � � � ' � ( � " � � . / � () � ) ! � ' � ' � � 1 � * � � * � - 2 � 0 � ( � * - " ( � S � ) � ' R � � � ' � - � ( � * H � � . 0 � - � (' , � � ! - � ( ' � � 2 � 0 � ( � * - ' & � ' " � ) � * ! ! � � � ) , ( * � & N � � � � � . � � � & * � -N � � � ' + � ( . : � * - ' R 4 � ( H 0 � � , F 2 ( * � ' � � " ( � � ( � � � 5 � ( � + � � ! - � � . : � � � � 3# M * � � 1 � ( � � � $ � � ) ! � - � � . ' � - � 0 * ! H ' * � - + � ) � ) ! � A " � - � ' � ( � * �* ) ) � � � � - * � � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &2 � 0 � 4 � - � D � � .2 � ( �2 % & 9 4 � ( H 0 � � , " * ( � � � ( * . � � ) � � ' * � - � ( . * � � 5 * � � � � ' � � � - � � � � / � * � - � � ' �# � , ( � � . , " � " 7 � " - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ' � ( � � , � ( � � * � ' $ + � ' � " ( * ) � � ) � ' � � + � H �* � - " � - � ' � ( � * � ' * / � � � * � - � � " ! � � � � � ! � 0 7 ) � ' � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' � , * � , *  �+ � � � � - � � � � / � � - ' � ) , * ' + � � � � ( ' � . � * . � * � - ( � * - � * ( H � � . ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 % & < 1 � " " � ( � 1 * / � : � � � � ' � � 1 ) , � � ! * � - � � , � ( 0 * ! H � � . " ( � S � ) � ' & * � - ( � * -( � � � � � . ( * ) � ' � � � � 0 � ( � * - 0 * � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .2 % & > 1 � " " � ( � � � � � ( ) � � � � ) � �  � � � � / � ( * � ! ' * � - ) � � � � ) � �  � � � � / � ( * � ! ' 0 � � ,- � ' � � � * � � � � ' ' � ) , * ' � , � � * ( H � � � ( " * ( H * � - ( � - � � � � ( - � ( � � " ( �  � - �� � � 7 � � � � ( � 5 � - � � * � ' � / � ( *  � ! 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � &: � ) , � � � - 2 ( * � ! '� � � � � � � � � ; � . � � � .2 % & @ 8 � + ! � ) � 5 � * � - ' � " " � ( � � , � � ( � ' ' F � ( � � � � 2 ( * � ! * � - � � , � ( " � + ! � ) � ( * � ! ' : � ) , � � � - 2 ( * � ! '� � � � � � � � � ; � . � � � .2 % & C � � � ' � - � ( , * � - � ) * " * ) ) � ' ' � + � ! � � � 0 , � � � * H � � . - � ) � ' � � � ' * + � � � ! � ) * � � � �� / " * � , ' & " * ( H � � . & ) ( � ' ' 0 * ! H ' & * � - � ( * � ' � � ( � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 3 & % 4 � ( H 0 � � , F 2 ( * � ' � � * - S � ' � � , � ' � . � * ! � � . * � � , � : � � � � 3 A P ( � - . � 1 � ( � � �� � � � ( ' � ) � � � � � � � � " ( �  � � ( * / / � ) / ! � 0 * � - ' * / � � � ( * � � � . * � - ) � � � � � � � � �' � " " � ( � " � ! � ) � � . * � - � ( * / / � ) � * � * . � � � � � - � ( � � . � � ( � � � . * � - �  � � � � .+ � ' � � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 3 & 3 J - � � � � / � ( � * - ' � . � � � � ' 0 , � ( � � � � ' � & ' " � � - & ) � � . � ' � � � � � ( ' * / � � � � ' A * ( �* " ( � + ! � � * � - 0 � ( H � � - �  � ! � " ' � ( * � � . � � ' � � ( � - � ) � � , � � � . * � �  �� � " * ) � ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 3 & 9 4 � ( H 0 � � , F 2 ( * � ' * � - � � : 8 � � � H � � " + ( � - . � ' � � * . � � -� * � � � � � * � ) � * � - ( � " * � ( ' ) , � - � ! � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 3 & < J � " ! � � � � � " � - � ' � ( � * � * � - + � H � � ( * / / � ) ' � . � * . � � � � , �  � ! ! * . � * � -, � *  � ! � + � H � 7 � ( * / / � ) H � - * ( � * ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 3 & > J � " ! � � � � � � � ) � ' ' * ( � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' / � ( ) � � " ! � * � ) � 0 � � , � , � M � � � ) � " * !: � * - ' G � � � ( * ! 8 � ( � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 3 & % J - � � � � / � * � - � " . ( * - � � � - � ( ' � 5 � - ) � !  � ( � ' � � " ( �  � � � 0 * ' , � � � ' R T ' �+ � ' � � * � * . � � � � � " ( * ) � � ) � ' / � ( � * � * . � � . ( � � � / / - � ( � � . ( � * -) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � � ( ( � ) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 3 & 3 4 � ( H � � ' � � � � � 0 ( � * - ' * 0 * � / ( � � ( �  � ( ' * � - ' � ( � * � ' & * � - ( � ( � � � � � (' � * + � ! � 5 � ( � * - ' � , * � * ( � ' � ' ) � " � � + ! � � � / ! � � - � � . 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 3 & 9 : � - � ) � ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( ( � � � / / + � � ' � � . + � ' � " ( * ) � � ) � ' * � - � � ) � ( " � ( * � � � .. ( � � � � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � � � � � � � 0 � ( � * - ) � � ' � ( � ) � � � � & / * ) � ! � � � � ' * � -! * � - ' ) * " � � . R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 9 & % 1 � " " � ( � " � + ! � ) * � - " ( �  * � � " � ! � ) � � ' & " ( � . ( * � ' � ( � � , � ( � / / � ( � ' � , * �" ( � � � � � * ! � � ( � * � �  � ' � � ' � � . ! � 7 � ) ) � " * � ) �  � , � ) ! � � ( *  � ! ' � ) , * ' " � + ! � )� ( * � ' � � � � " ( �  � � � � � ' & ) * ( 7 ' , * ( � � . & � � ! � ) � � � � � � � . & / ! � 6 � + ! � 0 � ( H' ) , � - � ! � ' * � - ' ) , � � ! + � ' � ' * . � R 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .



Y �

2 9 & 3 4 � ( H 0 � � , � � , � ( � , � � � � � - � � � � � � � � � � 0 � ' * � - � , � K . � � ) � � /2 ( * � ' " � ( � * � � � � � � * - - A � 6 " * � - 8 * ( H * � - : � - � / * ) � ! � � � � ' � � : � ) , � � � - * � -� � � . , + � ( � � . 2 � 0 � ' � � " ( �  � - � * ! � � ( � * � �  � ' � � � , � : � ) , � � � - 8 * ( H * � -: � - � � , * � � ' ) � ( ( � � � ! � � / � � * - � B � * � � ) * " * ) � � � R J - � � � � / � " � ' ' � + ! �* - - � � � � � * ! 8 * ( H * � - : � - � ) * " * ) � � � ' " * ) � � � : � ) , � � � - & ' � ) , * ' � � � , �' � � � , ' � - � � / � , � J E I � � � � ( ) , * � . � 0 � � , * " � - � ' � ( � * � ) ( � ' ' � � . ! � . , � * � � , �� 6 � ' � � � . � � � � ( ) , * � . � � ( * / / � ) ! � . , � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 9 & 9 - � 0 � � � 0 � & � ( � � * ( � ( * � ' � � � " � � � � ' & � � ( � - � ) � ) * ( � ( *  � ! - � ' � * � ) � ' R 8 ! * � � � � .� � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .2 9 & < 1 � " " � ( � ' � ) � * ! ' � (  � ) � � ( * � ' " � ( � * � � � � ' � ) , * ' 1 1 2 K & [ � � . , + � ( : � - � '* � - � � , � ( ' / � ( � ! - � ( ! � & - � ' * + ! � - � ( � � , � ( � � � 7 - ( �  � ( ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .2 9 & > 8 * ( � � � ( 0 � � , � , � M � � � � M * � ' / � � ! - M � - � / � � - T � � � � ' ) , � � ! � � ' � ( � ) � � �� � ) ( � * ' � + � ' ( � - � ( ' , � " & � ( ) ( � * � � � � , � ( � � * � ' � � ( � - � ) � � � ( � � � .) � � . � ' � � � � * � � , � = � � ( � � ( � � ( ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �2 9 & @ 4 � ( H 0 � � , � , � ' ) , � � ! - � ' � ( � ) � � � � 6 * � � � � � , � " � ' ' � + � ! � � � � / � ' � � . ' ) , � � !+ � ' � ' * ' * ' , � � � ! � ' � ' � � � * ( � � � - � � 0 � - � ( � � . , � � ( ' 0 , � � + � ' � ' * ( �� � � � ( * � ' " � ( � � � . ' � � - � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �T � � ! � � � � ' �= * ) � ! � � � � ' # T = $ % & % ? � ' � ( � � , * � F � ! � � � � � ( ' G ( � � � � ' � * � � � * � � � - * � - " � + ! � ) ! �* ) ) � ' ' � + ! � A � ' * + ! � / � ( ( � ' � - � � � ' * � -  � ' � � � ( ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & 3 = � ! ! � 0 � , � . � * ! ' * � - � � � � � � ' � / � , � 2 � 0 � = � ( � ' � � * � * . � � � � � " ! * � ' 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & 9 1 � " " � ( � � , � � / / � ( � ' � / � , � N � ' � � ( � ) * ! 1 � ) � � � � � � " ( � ' � (  � � . � , � : � � � -� , � ( ) , * � - � � ' " * ( ) � ! 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � ; � . � � � .T = % & < M * � � � * � � * � - � " . ( * - � � , � 2 � 0 � � � � � � ( + � � ! - � � . * � - " * ( H � � . * ( � * ' � �' � " " � ( � � , � � � � - ' � / � � 0 � � / / � ) � * ! ' * � - ' � * / / 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & > � � � � � � � � � � ( � � � � ( ! � * ' � � � 0 � ' " * ) � ' * � - . ( � � � - ' � � + � ' � � � ' ' � ' * � -� ( . * � � 5 * � � � � ' � � � ( - � ( � � + � ' � � � � ! � 5 � ' " * ) � * � - � * � � � * � � � , * � � � ) � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & @ M * � � � * � � * � - � " . ( * - � � , � : � ) , � � � - = � ( � � � " * ( � � � � � * � - : � ) , � � � -N � . , 0 * � � � " * ( � � � � � + � � ! - � � . ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & C � � � � � � � � � / / � ( � ' � � ) ( � * � � * � * / / � ( - * + ! � ' � ! � � � � � / � ( � , � " � ! � ) �- � " * ( � � � � � * � - � , � � ( / * ) � ! � � � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( �T = % & E J � " ! � � � � � ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( " ( � S � ) � ' � � � � 0 � " ( � " � ( � � � ' � - � � � � / � � - � � � , �1 � � ( � 0 * � � ( M * ' � � ( 8 ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �T = % & I ? � ' � ( � � , * � � , � 4 * � � ( * � - 4 * ' � � 0 * � � ( ' � ' � � � ' � � � � ( � . � ! * � � ( �' � * � - * ( - ' * � - , *  � / � � ) � � � � * ! ) * " * ) � � � * ' � � � - � - � � - � ( � , � 2 � 0 �8 ! * � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = % & % L J � " ! � � � � � + � � ! - � � . � � " ( �  � � � � � " ( � S � ) � ' / � ( � , � ! � + ( * ( � � � � ( - � ( � �� * � � � * � � � , � � ' � � / � , � , � ' � � ( � ) * ! + � � ! - � � . 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &D � + ( * ( � 2 ( � ' � � � ' D � � .2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = % & % % T � � ! � 5 � � � ! � � " ! � / � � - � � . ' � � ( ) � ' � � ) � � S � � ) � � � � 0 � � , � * 6 ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � �� � " ! � � � � � / * ) � ! � � � � " . ( * - � ' * � - � * � � � � � * � ) � � � * / / � ( - * + ! � 0 * � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = % & % 3 M � - � ( � � 5 � � � 0 � + � � ! - � � . ' 0 � � , � � � ( . � � / / � ) � � � ) � � � * ' � ( � ' * � -* ) ) � ' ' � + � ! � � � � � * ' � ( � ' � � � � ' � ( � ) � � � � � � � - � ' * + � ! � � � & � ' " � ) � * ! ! � � � � , �, � ' � � ( � ) / * ) � ! � � � � ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = 3 & % � � � � � � � � � � � " . ( * - � 0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( A ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � � �S � � � � " ( � S � ) � ' 0 � � , � , � , � . , 0 * � - � " * ( � � � � � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .T = 3 & 3 J � " ! � � � � � * � K ' ' � � M * � * . � � � � � � * � � � � � * � ) � " ( � . ( * � � �0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( A ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( * � - , � . , 0 * � � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � * � - � ' � � � / � (* � * � � � � � * � ) � ' ) , � - � ! � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �T = 3 & 9 � � ( � ) � ! � ) � � � � ) � � , � ) * " � � * ! + � - . � � � � � , � K ' ' � � M * � * . � � � � �� * � � � � � * � ) � ' ) , � - � ! � � � ) ( � * � � ) � ! ! * + � ( * � � � � * � - ) � , � ' � � � � � * ! !0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( A ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( A , � . , 0 * � " ( � S � ) � ' 0 � � , � � � , �0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( - � ' � ( � ) � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( �T = 3 & < T " . ( * - � � , � 0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( A ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( ' � ' � � � ' � � � � � � / � � ) � � � � * !) * " * ) � � � * � - ( � . � ! * � � ( � ' � * � - * ( - ' 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = 3 & > ? 6 � � � - 0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( A ' � � ( � 0 * � � ( ! � � � ' � � " ( � � � ) � " � + ! � ) , � * ! � , * � -� , � � �  � ( � � � � � � 0 , � ( � / � * ' � + ! � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � D � � .2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = 3 & @ ? � ) � � ( * . � � , � � " . ( * - � � /) � � � � ) � � � � ' � � � , � ' � (  � ) � * ( � * 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � ; � . � � � .T = 3 & C ? � ) � � ( * . � � " . ( * - � ' � , * � " ( � � � ) � ) ( � � � ) * ! � � / ( * ' � ( � ) � � ( � ' � ) , * ' � , �0 * � � ( ! � � � � � - � ( � , � P ( � - . � 1 � ( � � � P ( � - . � R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .



Y �

T = 3 & E 1 � � H � � � * � - � � � ! � 5 � � � ! � � " ! � / � � - � � . ' � � ( ) � ' � � ) � � S � � ) � � � � 0 � � ," � ' ' � + ! � � * 6 ( � ' � � ( ) � ' � � � � " ! � � � � � � , � * ' ' � � � * � * . � � � � �� * � � � � � * � ) � " ( � . ( * � 0 � � , � , � ! � * ' � � � " * ) � � � 0 * � � ( A 0 * ' � � 0 * � � ( ( * � � '* � - � � 0 � � * 6 � ' R 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � &4 * � � ( � � � � � ' ' � � � 1 , � ( �2 � ( � &; � . � � � .T = 3 & I � � � � � � � � � � ) , * ( . � � � " * ) � / � � ' � � � / / ' � � ) � ' � ' � / � " � ( * � � � � ' R 1 � ! � ) � + � * ( - ; � . � � � .T = 9 & % J - � � � � / � � " " � ( � � � � � � � ' � � 0 � ( H 0 � � , " ( �  � - � ( ' � � � � ) ( � * ' � � � � � ( � � � ' " � � -* � - *  * � ! * + � ! � � � * � - � � ) ( � * ' � ) � ! ! ' � (  � ) � ) �  � ( * . � � � � � 0 � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � D � � .2 � ( �T = 9 & 3 T � � ! � 5 � * � - ' � " " � ( � � , � � � � � � * � �  � ' � / � , � � , � � � � � - � � 1 � ! � - 4 * ' � � � � ' � ( � ) � 2 � 0 � 7 4 � - � & 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .T = 9 & 9 4 � ( H 0 � � , F � ( � � � � ? ! � ) � ( � ) � � � " � ( * � �  � * � - G ( � � � M � � � � * � � 8 � 0 � ( � �� � ' � ( � * ! ! ( � ' � - � � � ' , *  � * ) ) � ' ' � � ( � ! � * + ! � � ! � ) � ( � ) � � � 2 � 0 �K - � � � � ' � ( * � � � � ; � . � � � .
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� ¡ � ¢ £ � � ¤ � ¥ � ¦ � § ¡ � £ � � � ¨ � ¢ ¥ © � ª � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ ¬� � �  ® ¦ � § ¯ � � � ¡ � � �  ° � � � ± ² ² � ² ² £ � � � ¨ � ® ° ± © � ³ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ � � � ´� � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � ¶ � � � � � � � � � � � � �· ¯ ¸ ¸ � � � ¹ ² � ¨ ¹ ² � º � § ¯ � ± � � ¸ � � ² � § © » ¸ ¡ � ¸ � £ � ¼ � � � � � � µ � � ½ � � ¾ � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � µ � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � � � �° £ � ¸ � ¿ ¸ ¡ � � À � ª � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ ¬ � � � � � � � µ Á � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ « � � � � � � µ Á� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Â Ã � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � �� � � � � � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � µ Á � � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � Â Ä � µ   � � � ¬ � � � � ¬ � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Å � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ ¬ � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � Å � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � Å � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � Å � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � �   � � �� � � « � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ½ � � Å � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ � ¬ � � ¬ � Â· ¡ £ � § � � � ° � ¸ � � � ² � ª � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � Á � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Á   � � µ � � � � � � Á� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � Â Æ � � � � � � � Ã � � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Á � � � ´ � �� � � � � Á � � �   � � µ � � � � � � � � ´ Â Ç � � µ � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � ¬ � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ´ � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � Â° � � ¤ � � § È § ¡ ¡  É � Ê � ¸  ± ¸ � � � Ç � � Ã Ë Ì ³ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Í � � � � � � � Ë � � � � Î � � � � � � � � ¼ � � � � � � Ï � Ð Í Ë Î ¼ Ï � Ñ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � ¬ ¬ � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � Ð Ò Ó Ó ¶ µ � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � Ñ� Ô Ô � Õ � Ö � ¸ � ³ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � µ � � � �   � µ × � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � ¬ � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � Â Î � � � � � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � ¬ � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ´ � � ¬ � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � µ Ï �¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � « � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ÂØ � � � � � � � ¸ �  � Î � �   � � � � � � � µ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � µ � ½ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ� � � µ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � µ « � � � � � � � � � ¬ � � � � � ¶ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � µ � Â· ° ± � Æ � � � � � � � µ Ã � � � � � � � � ³ � � � � � � � � � �



27 

 

List of Uses 

List of Uses in Current Zoning Regulations 

• Accessory dwelling 

• Accessory uses 

• Adaptive use 

• Agriculture 

• Amusement Arcade - An indoor or outdoor area, open to the public, that contains coin-

operated games, rides, shows, and similar entertainment facilities and devices. 

• Artists/Crafts Studio 

• Automobile and/or marine sales 

• Automobile Service Station - Any building, land area, or other premises, or portion 

thereof, used for the retail dispensing or sales of vehicular fuels; servicing and repair of 

automobiles and light trucks; and including as an accessory use the sale and installation 

of lubricants, tires, batteries, and similar vehicle accessories. This definition does not 

include any other uses, such as restaurants, deli’s, car washes, etc. which may only be 

allowed under separate review and approval under these Zoning Regulations. 

• Bank 

• Bed and Breakfast 

• Boarding or Rooming House 

• Business Yard - A business which operates out of a yard which may include structures, 

indoor and outdoor storage of materials, equipment or vehicles. Customary accessory 

uses for the business are small office space and vehicle and equipment repair. A majority 

of the business activity shall take place off-site. No assembly is involved or allowed. 

• Car Wash 

• Catering Services 

• Cemetery 

• Commercial Multi-Use - Activity involving the sale of goods or services carried out for 

profit in conjunction with two or more types of commercial activities on the same lot. 

• Communication Use - Establishments and structures furnishing point-to-point 

communication services, whether by wire or radio, either aurally or visually, including 

radio and television broadcasting stations, satellite relay stations, telephone 

communications, radar and the exchange or recording of messages. 

• Cottage industry - A commercial, manufacturing, or industrial use which is housed in a 

single-family dwelling or in an accessory structure to a single-family dwelling, on the 

same lot as the dwelling. A Cottage Industry is not a Home Occupation 

• Distribution Center  

• Single-Family Dwelling 

• Two-Family Dwelling 

• Multi-Family Dwelling 

• Educational Facility 



28 

 

• Equipment Supply and Rental 

• Extraction of Earth Resources 

• Food Processing Establishment - An establishment in which food is processed or 

otherwise prepared for eventual human consumption but not consumed on the premises. 

• Funeral Parlor 

• Garage, Repair - Any building, premises, and land in which or upon which a business, 

service, or industry involving the maintenance, servicing, repair, or painting of vehicles is 

conducted or rendered. 

• Group Home 

• Home Occupation 

• Horticulture 

• Hotel/Motel 

• Inn or Guest House 

• Kennel 

• Light Manufacturing 

• Lumber Yard 

• Mobile Home Park 

• Museum 

• Business Office - A building where the management affairs of a business, commercial or 

industrial organization, or firm are conducted. 

• Professional Office - an establishment used for conducting the affairs of a business, 

profession, service, industry, or like activity. Such office uses have limited contact with 

the general public. It also does not involve manufacturing, repairing, processing, and 

retail sales of articles and goods 

• Personal Services 

• PUD Residential 

• PUD 

• Private Club - A building and related facilities owned or operated by a corporation, 

association, or group of individuals established for the fraternal, social, educational, 

recreational, or cultural enrichment of its members and not primarily for profit, nor 

general public and whose members pay dues and meet certain prescribed qualifications 

for membership. 

• Recreation Facility 

• Religious Use 

• Research Laboratory 

• Restaurant 

• Fast-Food Restaurant 

• Retail 

• Retirement Community 

• Silviculture 

• State and Community Operated Facility 



29 

 

• Indoor Storage - The keeping, in an enclosed area, of any goods, junk, material, 

merchandise, or vehicles in the same place for more than twenty-four (24) hours. 

• Outdoor Storage 

• Tavern 

• Theater 

• Warehouse Use - A building used primarily for the storage of goods and materials, which 

may also be made available to the general public for a fee. 

• Wholesale Trade 

 

 

 

 

List of uses introduced with Jolina Court Zoning District regulations that can be added to the 

uses table: 

• Brewery 

• Large Family Child Care Home 

• Center-based child care facility 

• Fitness Facility 

• Hospital 

• Health Care Services 

• Laundromat 

• Office, Medical 

• Pharmacy 

 

 



¬«117

JERICHO RD

BR
IDGE ST

HINESBURG RD
HUNTINGTON RD

COCHRAN RD

£¤2

§̈¦89

TR0284

TR0282

TR0257

TR0232
TR0276

TR0201

TR
017

4

TR0174 TR
013

5 CO0366

CO
03

40

CO
03

14 CO0388 CO0488CO0290.B

CO0672

CO0220

TR0085TR0200

TR0118
CO0142

CO0393FR002
1

CO
01

24

CO0355

CO0110
CO0333

FR0041

CF0500FR0061

CO0044

CO0105

CO000
4FR0065

FR0067

FR
00

69FR
007

1FR007
3

FR
007

5FR0077
FR0079

HU0071

HU0061

CO
009

1

HU0023 NX0049

HU0065

RC0045

CO0280

HU0083

NX001
5

RC0047FR0099

FR010
1FR0103FR0105

CO0280

HU
020

5

RC003
0

CO0550

RC
00

25BR0552HU
00

48

BR0435

BR0520
BR0524

HU
00

72

BR0457 BR0431
HU0064

BR0506

BR0430

OB002
3 BR0401

OB0044

BR0401

OB0046

BR0253

BR0257

EM0357

BR0251

JC0200

EM0335
ES0039

BR0242

ES0065

EM0210

EM0287

ES0040

BR0203 LC
016

5 EM0269
ES0084

LC
017

1BR0226
BR0201ES0099

PS0114 EM0210
ES0062 PS0

110BR0208
LC0160

LC
017

9

ES0117 BR0202 EM018
2

PS0
098 PS0113ES0088

BR0151CS00
47

PS0
084ES0137

PS0
099

EM016
0BR0125

JC0074

ES0112 PS0
074

CS00
61 PS0

101

ES0149

EM
014

0

CS0020

JC0013

EM0233

EM0191PS0
056 EM

012
8

CS00
36

CF0300RR0015
PS0075CS0075 EM

018
9

CS00
52

RR003
1

EM
009

4
EM

011
2PS0044RR004

3

CS00
64

PS0057
EM0102RR005

3

CS0092

BR0286
PS0

014

EM0078
PS0041 EM0072

EM
015

7

RR0065 EM
006

4

EM
005

4

PS0023
CS0080

BR0072

CF06
50

BR0045

EM
003

8BR0052
BR0039

CS0092

EM
009

9

BR0048 EM
002

4NX0024

BR0038

EM
013

1

BR0030DS0053

EM0010

RR0104

DS00
22

BR0026

EM
011

3

EM
004

3

DS00
42

WM0013

EM008
0

EM
008

1

EM
003

5

CF07
00

RR0099

EM
008

2
EM

008
3

RR0056

EM
008

4
EM

008
5

EM
001

3

DS00
58

WM003
5

EM008
6

EM
008

7

EM008
8

DS00
76

WM005
1

RR0123 EM
005

1WM000
4

WM006
5

DS00
92

WM002
0

RR
013

4

JR0032

JR0052WM007
7 JR0062

WM009
1

RR
01

60

HU0400

WM010
3

RR0216
JR0047

JR0078
WM0030

WM011
7

CF0150

WM014
1

NX005
JR0090

JR0087

WM0064

WM015
5 JR0099ML0029

WM016
7 JR0109

BA002
4

RR0198

WM0183 ML0031 JR
01

37

BA002
5

WM021
5 BA0056 ML011
1

ML0065

BA0066
JR0112

BA004
7

TL
005

1

WM019
4 BA0082

WM016
4 TL

008
3

WM019
6

JR
01

47BA0075
BA0100

WM021
2

WM021
4 TL0127TL

015
1

TL015
7

TL
017

1

TL
005

4

TL
01

83

TL
00

72

TL
02

03

VX0454

TL
00

86TL0209

TL
01

02

WM0217

CS0092

JR0205

TL
01

14

CF
06

00

TL
01

42

TL
01

54

WM0222

TL
01

64

TL0209

TL
01

86

TL
02

02

WM0282
VX0447

TL0222
JR0233

JR0249

BC0149

BC
01

63

CS0092

BC0125
BC0101

JR0283
BC0181

CF0350 BC
002

9
JR

029
7

BC
01

58

BC0136
BC0116

BC0088

WM0350

BC0176

BC0030

BC
001

4

JR0341

VX0367

TL0232

WM0434
JR0343

BC0058

JR0240

BU0017NX0050

VX0406

VX0253

BU0044
BU0062

BU
00

88

VX0244

VX0170

BU0012

BU0125

HU0400

WM0600

HS0135

NX0021
VX0102VB0468

COCHRAN RD

JE
RI

CH
O 

RD

BR
IDG

E S
T

TH
OMPS

ON RD

TILDENAVE

BURNETT CT

BAKER ST

HUNTINGTON RD

PLEASANTST

FARR RD

SCHOOL ST

MILLET ST

ESPLANADE

LEMROY CT

CHURCH ST

BROWNS CT

£¤2

TILDEN AVE §̈¦89

Legend
Zoning District

Agricultural/Residential (AR)
High Density Residential (HDR)
Residential/Commercial (RC)
Commercial (C)
Industrial/Commercial (IC)
Gateway Commercial (G)
Village Commercial (VC)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)

Flood Hazard Overlay District
Floodway
Special Flood Hazard Area
Designated Village Center 
Municipal Water & Sewer District
Stream Centerline
Water Body

Road Centerline
Interstate
US or State Highway
Town Highway Class 1 - 3
Town Highway Class 4
Railroad
Tax Parcel Boundary

Official Zoning District Map
Richmond, Vermont

Effective February 22, 2010

¹
1 inch = 300 feet

1 inch = 0.5 mile

Sources:  
Flood Hazard Overlay - FEMA  Special Flood Hazard Area, 2014
Zoning - updated by CCRPC, 2010; Parcel Boundary - GrassRoots GIS, 
2014.  Map created by P. Brangan using ArcGIS.  All data is in State 
Plane Coordinate System, NAD 1983.  
Disclaimer:
The accuracy of information presented is determined by its sources.  
Errors and omissions may exist.  The Chittenden County Regional 
Planning Commission is not responsible for these.  Questions of 
on-the-ground location can be resolved by site inspections and/or 
surveys by registered surveyor.  This map is not sufficient for 
delineation of features on-the-ground.  This map identifies the presence
of features, and may indicate relationships between features, but is not 
a replacement for surveyed information or engineering studies. ___________________________________

Chair of the Richmond Selectboard

Date: 9/24/2014



 

31 

 

VDZD Revised Draft for 2-19-2020 

3.10 Village Downtown District (VD) 

Area: the following parcels are included in this district:PS0023, BR0052, BR0048, BR0039, BR0038, BR0030, BR0027, 

BR0026, WM0013, EM0010, EM0013, WM0004, WM0035, DS0022 

Purpose: The purpose of the Village Downtown Mixed-Use District is to provide a district that encompasses the 

existing village core area and supports employment, light industry, commercial enterprises, community gathering 

spaces, dense and affordable housing, and other compatible uses that bring value to the community and maintain 

Richmond’s unique sense of place. It will also support the traditional village mixed use patterns with street/ground level 

commercial uses and upper floor residential uses. There are 3 primary goals for this district: 

1. Help improve the economic vitality of Richmond by attracting desirable new businesses to the site, creating 

jobs, and increasing municipal water and wastewater utility use. 

2. Attract residents and visitors to our village center for community and commercial activities. 

3. Increase the housing density, affordability, and diversity in order to support a vibrant and diverse population 

of Richmond residents. 

Any development in this district shall enhance the overall village area and shall be compatible with the surrounding mix 

of residential, non-residential, and municipal uses. Any development proposal shall fit into the vision for Richmond as 

described in the Richmond Town Plan.   

 3.10.1 Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Zoning Permit by Administrative Officerand Site 

Plan Approval- The following uses shall be allowed uses in the Village Downtown District upon issuance of a Zoning 

Permit by the Administrative Officer. Site Plan Review by the DRB shall also be required. More than one principal use per 

lot is allowed in this district.  

a) Cooperative Workspace 

b)a) Office, Business or Professional 

c)b) Personal Services 

 3.10.2 Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval-The following uses may be 

allowed in the Village Downtown District after issuance of conditional use approval by the DRB. More than one principal 

use per lot is allowed in this district. 

a) Agriculture, silviculture, and horticulture as provided in 2.4.5 

b) Artists/Crafts studio 

c) Bank 

d) Bed and Breakfast 

e) Brewery 

f) Catering Service 

g) Center-based Child Care Facility 

h) Commercial Multi-Use Building 

i) Educational Facility as provided in Section 5.10.4      

j) Equipment Rental or Supply 

k) Food Processing Establishment 

l) Funeral Parlor 

m) Group Home  



 

32 

 

n) Hotel 

o) Laboratory, Research or other 

p) Large Family Child Care Home 

q) Inn or guest house 

r) Laundromat 

s) Light Manufacturing 

t) Medical Offices and Facilities 

u) Museum 

v) Planned Unit Development  

as provided in Section 5.12, if no subdivision of land is proposed (see Section 5.12.1). 

Residential Dwelling Units as part of a Mixed Use Planned Unit Development 

No residential-only Planned Unit Development 

w) Pharmacy 

x) Private Club 

y) Pub 

z) Recreational facility, indoor or outdoor, facility or park 

aa) Religious use as provided in Section 5.10.4 

bb) Restaurant 

cc) Retail business 

dd) Retirement Community 

ee) Short Term Rental 

ff) State- or community-owned and operated institutions and facilities as provided in Section 5.10.4 

gg) Tavern 

hh) Theater 

ii) Wholesale trade 

jj) Veterinary Clinics 

 

3.10.3 Residential Density and Requirements 

 a) Each residential unit shall require 1/24 acre of developable land located on the 

same lot as the unit. This equals a residential density of 24 units per acre.  The 

residential density shall be calculated as provided in section 4.12. 

 

Each residential dwelling unit shall require 1/24 acre of developable land located on the 

same lot as the unit. This equals a residential density of 24 units per acre. Developable 

land excludes those lands that are outlined in section 2.5.2. The maximum number of 

units that may be permitted shall be calculated by multiplying the residential density by 

the total developable acreage of the lot. When this calculation results in a number of 

units with a fractional component, the fraction will be rounded according to 

conventional rounding rules as follows, where X is a whole number:  

 

X.0 – X.49 units shall be rounded DOWN to X units.  

X.50 – X.99 units shall be rounded UP to X+1 units.  

 

Examples: 24 units/acre x 0.22 developable acres = 5.28 units rounds DOWN to 5 units.  



 

33 

 

24 units/acre x 0.16 developable acres = 3.84 units rounds UP to 4 units.  

If the number of permissible units is less than one (1) it shall be rounded UP to 1 unit.  

Example: 24 units/acre x 0.02 developable acres = 0.48 units rounds UP to 1 unit. 

 b) Residential dwelling units shall be restricted to the second story/floor and 

above of any building and shall not be allowed on the street/ground level.  These units 

may be approved as part of a mixed-use Planned Unit Development. 

 

3.10.4 Dimensional Requirement for Lots in the VD District-No Zoning Permit may can be 

issued for Land Development in the VD District unless the lot proposed for such Land Development meets the 

following dimensional requirements: 

a) Lot Area- No lot shall be less than one-eighth (1/8) or 0.125 acre The purchase of additional land 

by the owner of a lot from an adjacent lot owner will be permitted, provided such purchase does not 

create a lot of less than the minimum area required in the Zoning District on the part of the seller.       

b) Lot Dimensions-Each lot must contain a point from which a circle with a radius of twenty-five 

(25) feet can be inscribed within the boundary of the lot. 

d) Lot Frontage-No lot having frontage on a public or private road shall have less than seventy-five 

(75) feet of continuous uninterrupted length of said frontage, or the lot must have access to a public or 

private road with approval by the DRB pursuant to Sections 4.2 and 4.3. 

e) Lot Coverage- The total ground area covered by all structures, parking areas, walkways, 

driveways and areas covered by impervious materials shall not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the total 

ground area of the lot. 

  3.10.5 Dimensional Limitations for Structures on Lots in the VD District 

a) Height-The height of any structure shall not exceed thirty-five(35) feet. Refer to Section 4.12 for 

additional regulations, exemptions, and restrictions regarding building height.  In addition, all units in 

which people live or work must be provided with an egress window whose lower sill or threshold shall 

not exceed thirty-two (32) feet from the adjacent ground and shall be large enough to allow for passage 

of an average-sized adult human. 

b) Setback-  All structures shall have zero (0) feet setbacks, except for a five (5) feet setback for all 

structures on from district boundaries. All development is required to install and maintain a sidewalk to 

the public works standards on any and all public road frontage. Placement of the sidewalk and curb cuts 

or accesses to the property are subject to approval of the Highway Foreman.  

 3.10.6 Other Requirements Applicable to Lots in the VD District- No Zoning Permit may be 

issued for Land Development in the VD District unless the Land Development meets the following requirements: 

a) Water Resources-all lots in this district shall be served by the Richmond municipal water and sewer 

system. 



 

34 

 

b.  Parking  

i) Residential  

 In this district, the residential parking requirement shall be based on the number of bedrooms per 

dwelling unit. The spaces required shall only serve to calculate overall supply and shall not be assigned 

to specific dwellings.  

Bedrooms Efficiency (0) 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

Spaces Required 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 

 Spaces shall increase by 0.5 spaces per additional bedroom.  

Bicycle parking racks shall be required within the parking areas, and lots shall be required to provide 

safe and convenient bicycle access as per section 6.1.6 

ii) Non-residential parking supply requirements shall follow the requirements as set forth in section 6.1.  

iii) Exempted Lots 

 BR0052, BR0048, BR0038, BR0030, BR0026, BR0039, EM0010 are exempt from standard parking 

requirements. However, they are required to provide a descriptive plan for where they intend to have 

tenants and patrons park, whether that be providing a copy of a private parking agreement between 

landowners or use of public parking. Use of public parking requires approval from the Selectboard and 

the road foreman approval in the form of a public parking permit. 

b) Loading - Off-Road or Highway loading requirements shall be regulated as provided in Section 6.1. 

c) Signs - Signs shall be regulated as provided in Section 5.7. 

d) Traffic Impact - The purpose of this requirement is to foster the general welfare of the public through the 

minimization of traffic congestion, air pollution, and the risk of motor vehicle and pedestrian accidents. 

a) A transportation impact study shall be required for uses which generate more than 70 vehicle trip 

ends on adjacent roads during the P.M. peak hour for the first 40,000 square feet of land 

development area or fraction thereof, plus 1 vehicle trip end for each additional 1,000 square feet of 

land development area. In making the determination of traffic impact, the Administrative Officer or 

DRB shall utilize “Trip generation – Tenth Edition”, Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE), or its 

equivalent, or any subsequent and most recent publication thereof, and may use estimates from 

other sources, including local traffic counts, if the above publication does not contain data for a 

specific use or if a use contains unique characteristics that cause it to differ from national traffic 

estimates.  

b) For establishments that generate more than 70 vehicle trip ends during the P.M. peak hour, the 

Development Review Board shall review the level of service of adjacent roads. Based on its review 

as well as consultation with the Road Foreman, the DRB may put forth permit conditions to mitigate 

adverse traffic impacts. Permit conditions may include: 

a. Site improvements to improve access management, such as the creation of secondary 

access points, the reduction of the width of curb cuts, or the like; 



 

35 

 

b. Improvements to internal circulation, including the creation of narrower roadway widths, 

pedestrian pathways, and the like; 

c. Improvements with connections with adjacent properties, such as, but not limited to, the 

creation of additional vehicle or pedestrian access points, the installation of signage and 

traffic lights, and adjustments to intersections to reduce pedestrian crossing distances and 

to slow traffic. 

 

e) Access - Access shall be regulated as provided in Sections 4.1 through 4.4. 

f) Compatibility- The purpose of this requirement is to allow the Development Review Board to review and 

approve the visual aspects of new construction or new or remodeled exteriors. The goal of this requirement is to 

ensure public ability to review the visual rendering, and the opportunity to provide input.      A visual rendering 

of any new construction or remodeled exterior shall be required as part of a site plan and/or conditional use 

application. Any changes to the facade, size, or scale of new construction or a remodeled exterior shall require a 

new visual rendering that portrays the proposed changes and shall require an amendment to the Development 

Review Board’s original site plan and/or conditional use approval which contains the most recent iteration of the 

visual rendering. The following shall be considered when reviewing the application: 

● Compatibility of size, scale, color, materials, and character of the district, and construction 

utilizing materials similar or the same to the existing buildings of the district, is required for all 

new construction and all new or remodeled exterior facades. 

● Applicants shall be required to demonstrate compatibility through examples, research, 

architectural consultation, or other means. 

● This compatibility requirement shall not prohibit artistic expression, ability to landscape, 

commercial viability, creativity, or individuality.  

g) Residential Use - Residential dwelling units shall be restricted to the second story/floor or higher of any 

building and shall only be approved and permitted via Planned Unit Development.  

h) Additional Possible Conditions - The following site standards also may be required as a condition of 

Development Review Board approval 

● Greater setback or screening requirements along the perimeter of the property 

● Adequate pedestrian circulation 

● Landscaping 

● Demonstration of the ability to properly develop, operate, and maintain development roads, 

utilities, driveways, parking, sidewalks, landscaping, and other conditions or standards imposed 

 

Insert reference to “VDZD” to Sections 4.11.3c, 5.7.4, and 5.12.2 

 

 



36 

 

Draft Language for Veterinary Clinics – 2/19/2020 

 

Veterinary Clinics [add] -   An establishment intended primarily for the medical and surgical treatment of 

domestic animals including the short-term boarding of animals while receiving treatment. Allowable accessory 

uses include pet grooming and the retail sale of pet supplies. 

 

Add “Veterinary Clinics” uses to the following sections 

• Section 3.1.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the A/R District), with the 

condition: with a maximum size of 2500 square feet gross floor area 

• Section 3.2.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the HDR District), with 

the condition: with a maximum size of 2500 square feet gross floor area 

• Section 3.3.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the R/C District) 

• Section 3.4.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the Gateway District) 

• Section 3.5.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the V/C District) 

• Section 3.6.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the Commercial District) 

• Section 3.7.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the I/C District) 

• Section 3.9.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the JC District) 

• Section 3.10.2 (Allowable Uses Upon Issuance of Conditional Use Approval in the VD District) 



 

37 

 

TO: Richmond Planning Commission  

FROM: Ravi Venkataraman, Town Planner 

DATE: February 13, 2020 

SUBJECT: Short-Term Rentals 

 

Since the February 5th Planning Commission meeting, one item I have been researching is regulations for short-

term rentals. Municipalities can regulate short-term rentals through only zoning, a standalone ordinance, or 

zoning and a standalone ordinance. The remainder of this memo will overview how zoning, a standalone 

ordinance, or zoning and a standalone ordinance would work, as well as their respective pros and cons. 

I have also enclosed the following as references: 

• “Vermont Supreme Court Reinforces JAM Golf” from Vermont League of Cities and Towns  

• “Village of Woodstock Short Term Rental Ordinance” 

• Page 41 from the “Village of Woodstock Zoning Regulations” (pertaining to short-term rentals) 

Regulation via Zoning  

Regulating short-term rentals through the existing zoning ordinance framework is possible. To enable this, 

“dwelling” and “short-term rental” needs to be differentiated with different classifications.  

Based on my conversations with VLCT and the Town Attorney, the definition to dwelling uses would need to 

be modified to language similar to this (the following language was taken from the Jolina Court Zoning District 

revisions; my suggested annotations are redlined): 

Dwelling unit: a room or group of rooms within a building containing cooking, bathing and sleeping 

facilities that functions as the permanent living space for a single set of family members or roommates 

for a period of more than 30 consecutive days.  A building or structure may be occupied by one, two or 

multiple dwelling units.  The term “dwelling” is also used to refer to a dwelling unit in these regulations. 

The key notions that need to be included in the definition are permanent occupancy, and the parameters for 

permanent occupancy. These notions would narrow the use and specify the proper use of the property. 

The definition for short-term rental could be similar to this language: 

Short-term Rental: a room or group of rooms within a building containing cooking, bathing and sleeping 

facilities rented to the transient, traveling, or vacationing public for a period of fewer than 30 

consecutive days. 

I drafted this language based on a bill the Vermont Legislature is currently considering granting municipalities 

the explicit authority to regulate short-term rentals.  

With the new use category, I would recommend changes to Sections 3 (Zoning District Regulations) and 6 

(Special Zoning Regulations) to establish specific regulations for short-term rental uses. Specific regulations 

would include location, size, setbacks, and site plan review standards. 

Once the short-term rental use is included in the zoning regulations, anyone who wants to establish a short-term 

rental would file the proper permits to change a use to short-term rental use or to create a short-term rental use.  



 

38 

 

Compared to creating a new ordinance, amending the zoning regulations to have regulations for short-term 

rentals is straightforward.  

But, one item to note, these new zoning regulations would only apply to short-term rental uses established after 

the date the amended zoning regulations have been adopted. The currently operating short-term rental uses in 

town would be grandfathered. This is the main drawback to using zoning to regulate short-term rentals. With 

this as well, monitoring and regulating short-term rentals would be tougher for staff because we would not 

know which short-term rentals were established prior to the date the zoning amendments were adopted. 

Regulation via a Standalone Ordinance 

The framework for a standalone ordinance for short-term rentals would be similar to the ordinance enclosed 

from the Village of Woodstock. As presented in the Village of Woodstock short-term rental ordinance, terms 

and conditions can include seasonal limitations, and also caps on the number of short-term rental units in town, 

and moratoriums.  

The key benefit of a short-term rental ordinance is the ability to regulate all currently existing and future short-

term rental uses. Existing short-term rental uses would be subject to the short-term rental ordinance.  

However, without zoning regulations to dovetail the short-term rental ordinance, the level of scrutiny to the 

size, scale, and scope of short-term rental uses would not be as robust.  

To note: establishing standalone ordinances are outside the purview of the Planning Commission. The 

Selectboard drafts and establishes all standalone ordinances—possibly with the Planning Commission’s input in 

an advisory capacity.  

Regulation via Zoning and a Standalone Ordinance 

The Village of Woodstock has both zoning regulations and a short-term rental ordinance. The zoning ordinance 

regulates the size, scale, scope and location of short-term rental uses. The short-term rental ordinance 

establishes the registration requirement for all short-term rental uses and clarifies use-specific requirements.  

With both zoning regulations and a short-term rental ordinance, all short-term rental uses would be regulated by 

either the short-term rental ordinance or both the short-term rental ordinance and the zoning regulations. In 

addition, the zoning regulations would curb impacts for any new short-term rental uses in the future.  

Recommendations 

Regulating short-term rentals with a standalone ordinance, at least, would be the best method to curtail short-

term rental uses. Standalone ordinances would allow for more control over the use and create registration 

requirements for short-term rental uses. 

However, bear in mind the impetus and objectives for regulating short-term rentals. Standalone ordinances are 

stronger than zoning regulations in particular ways because standalone ordinances are more tailored and focused 

on a specific subject matter.  

 



Vermont Supreme Court Reinforces JAM Golf 

 

The Vermont Supreme Court reiterated its prior holding in In re Appeal of JAM Golf, LLC, that 

municipalities must adopt clear land use regulations. In that landmark case, the Court ruled that 

“Zoning ordinances must ‘specify sufficient conditions and safeguards’ to guide applicants and 

decisionmakers. We will not uphold a statute that ‘fail[s] to provide adequate guidance,’ thus 

leading to ‘unbridled discrimination’ by the court and the planning board charged with its 

interpretation.”  Clear land use regulations not only help land use officials who apply regulations, 

but also property owners who need to understand the limits on the use of their property. In re 

John Toor, Margaret Toor and Toor Living Trust NOV, 2012 VT 63 comes approximately four 

years after JAM Golf wherein Vermont municipalities were put on notice that “[z]oning 

ordinances must “specify ... sufficient conditions and safeguards” to guide applicants and 

decisionmakers.” The Toor case demonstrates that land use regulations must plainly state the 

types of development a municipality wants to limit or control so that landowners know what they 

can or can’t do with their property. 

 

This case comes from Grand Isle, a popular lakeside summer vacation spot, where approximately 

240 of the housing units are considered seasonal, recreational, or occasional use. John and 

Margaret Toor’s home fell into this category. In the summer of 2009, the Toors began renting 

their home. Their tenants used the property in substantially the same way as the Toors – for 

vacations, entertaining, and various celebrations. In September 2009, the Grand Isle 

administrative officer issued a notice of violation alleging rental of the property constituted a 

change of use from a single family dwelling without a zoning permit. 

 

The property owners appealed the notice of violation to the Grand Isle Development Review 

Board, then to the Environmental Division of the Superior Court (E-Court), and finally to the 

Vermont Supreme Court. The appellate authority of both the DRB and the E-Court upheld the 

administrative officer’s determination, however each had its own interpretation of why the use 

was no longer a single family dwelling unit use. “[T]he [E-Court’s] view was that the violation 

occurred because of the income production, through numerous financial arrangements, and the 

short-term rental periods, which created impermanence.” The Supreme Court rejected this 

argument, finding the tenant used the house the same way as did the homeowners – as a single 

family dwelling unit, a permitted use in the district – and that for the period of time that each 

tenant occupied the house it constituted a single household regardless of the length of tenancy. 

The tenants could allow guests to stay overnight, just as the homeowners did. As for the 

intermittent income producing nature of the rental property, the Court determined that the district 

allowed for commercial uses, and the permitted use (single family dwelling unit) didn’t “imply a 

prohibition” on renting the dwelling unit. 

 

The Supreme Court held that Grand Isle’s regulations, as written, did not limit the landowners’ 

ability to rent their home. In doing so, the Court clarified that interpreting local land use 

regulations requires “narrow construction and the need for landowners to be able to ascertain the 

line between proper use of their property and illegal use.” If the town wanted to prevent this use 

and its potential associated impacts, the ambiguity of the regulation must be resolved by 

“legislative action to create workable solutions in areas of broad general standards” and not by 

the judiciary. 

Planning
Highlight

Planning
Highlight

Planning
Highlight

Planning
Highlight

Planning
Highlight

Planning
Highlight



 

To read the Vermont Supreme Court’s decision, go to 

http://info.libraries.vermont.gov/supct/current/op2011-085.html  

 

Stephanie Smith, AICP, Senior Associate 

VLCT Municipal Assistance Center 

http://info.libraries.vermont.gov/supct/current/op2011-085.html


 

 

Woodstock, Vermont The Shire Town of Windsor County 

T O W N - V I L L A G E   M A N A G E R G O V E R N M E N  T 
 

Town Hall • P.O. Box 488 • Woodstock, Vermont 05091 • 802/ 457-3456 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Trustees that the Woodstock Village Ordinances 

are hereby revised as follows: 

VILLAGE OF WOODSTOCK SHORT TERM RENTAL ORDINANCE 

I. Authority.  This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authority set forth in Act 

82 – An Act Incorporating the Village of Woodstock – approved November 11, 

1836, and as amended from time to time thereafter, 24 V.S.A., Chapters 59 and 

61, and 24 V.S.A. § 2291(14) and (15).  This Ordinance is designated a civil 

ordinance under Chapter 59 of Title 24, V.S.A. 

 

II. Purpose.  The Woodstock Village Trustees hereby find that unregulated short 

term (i.e., less than 30 day) transient occupancy of dwelling units in residential 

neighborhoods presents a threat to the public welfare relating to compatibility 

with residential uses and preservation of the character of the neighborhoods in 

which they are located, and to the availability of housing stock in the Village, as 

evidenced in a 2019 study of short term rentals in Woodstock.  Unregulated short 

term rentals have negative secondary effects on residential areas, with such 

areas experiencing heightened adverse impacts from parking, garbage, noise and 

outdoor/nighttime activities.  These negative effects, when left unchecked, injure 

and degrade the community as a whole and constitute a public nuisance.  The 

majority of short term rentals are located in the Village.  The purposes of this 

Ordinance are: (a) to balance the desire of property owners to rent their 

residential properties to short term rental guests for compensation against the 

desire of residents to preserve the traditional peace and quiet of their residential 

neighborhoods; (b) to preserve and protect residential neighborhood character 

and livability from the nuisance impacts that are often associated with short 

term rentals; (c) to limit or prevent long term rentals from being replaced with 

short term rentals; (d) to ensure the safety of occupants of short term rentals and 

the well-being of the community; and (e) to promote the public health, safety and 

welfare of the Village, its residents and visitors. 

 

III. Definitions. 

A. Words, terms and phrases specifically defined in the Village of Woodstock 

Zoning Regulations shall have the same meaning in this Ordinance unless 

another meaning is specifically indicated.  

 



2 
 

B. “Short Term Rental” or “STR” shall mean any rental of residential property, 

including single-family, two-family, multi-family dwellings, attached and 

detached apartments, whether accessory or not, and/or any dwelling unit or 

room located therein containing living quarters, but specifically excluding 

motels, hotels/inns, bed and breakfast, tourist homes, clubs, group homes, 

sober-living houses, schools, hospitals or similar facilities, for a term or 

period of time that is less than thirty (30) days.  

 

C. “Owner Occupied” shall mean that the owner of the Short Term Rental, or 

another person authorized by the owner to act on his, her or its behalf, will be 

present at and residing on the property where the Short Term Rental is 

located during the rental period.  

 

D. “Compliance Officer” shall mean a person or persons designated by the 

Village Board of Trustees to administer and enforce this Ordinance 

and to serve as a representative of the Village in any associated legal 

proceedings. 

 

E. “Foliage Period” shall mean the period of time running from September 

15 up to and including October 21 of each year.  As provided below, 

during the Foliage Period there is no limitation on the number of times 

that an Owner Occupied Short Term Rental property may be rented. 

 

IV. Compliance with Law.   The owner of any Short Term Rental property shall 

comply with all other requirements of federal, State and local law pertaining to 

rental housing, including, without limitation, relevant provisions of the Vermont 

Rental Housing Health Code and the Village of Woodstock Zoning Regulations, 

as amended from time to time.  A building in which people rent accommodations, 

whether as a Short Term Rental or for a term of 30 days or more, constitutes a 

“public building” under 30 V.S.A. §2730(a)(1)(D) and may be subject to the 

authority of the State of Vermont Division of Fire Safety or its designee.     

 

V. Short Term Rental Registry & Annual Report. 

 

To provide Village officials, including designated Compliance Officers, with up-

to-date emergency contact, identification, occupancy, and pre- and post-incident 

planning and compliance information for Short Term Rental properties in the 

Village, the Village will utilize a “Short Term Rental Registry and Annual 

Reporting Program.”  The Short Term Rental Registry and Annual Reporting 

Program shall include all Short Term Rental properties, whether or not Owner 

Occupied. 



3 
 

 

A. Short Term Rental Registry 

 

On or before April 30 of each year: 

 

(1) The owner of property proposed for use as a Short Term Rental shall complete 

and submit a Short Term Rental Registry form to the Village on an annual basis.  

Said form shall be approved by the Board of Trustees and may be modified or 

amended from time to time with the approval of the Trustees.   

 

(2) The following information shall be provided by owner(s) of Short Term Rental 

property on or in conjunction with the Short Term Rental Registry form (note: 

proof of ownership may be required if the person submitting the Short Term 

Rental Registry form is not the record title holder, as indicated by documentation 

maintained in the Woodstock Land Records):  

 

(a) physical address(es) of all property advertised, offered for use, or used as a 

Short Term Rental; 

(b) contact information for property owner, including: name, mailing and/or 

physical address, telephone number, email address;  

(c) contact information for any person present at and residing on the property 

and authorized to act on the owner’s behalf, including: name, mailing and/or 

physical address, telephone number, email address;  

(d) contact information for any property manager, including: name mailing 

address, telephone number, email address;  

(e) a copy of the written property management agreement or contract, if 

applicable, stating the duration/term of any contract;  

(f) if not a whole building rental, the number of Short Term Rental dwelling 

units located within the building and the 911 addresses assigned to the units (if 

separate from the building); 

(g) a sketch plan depicting the Short Term Rental property and all proposed on-

site parking spaces, including guest parking; 

(h) a floor plan of the Short Term Rental depicting the location of all proposed 

sleeping areas and fire exits, including egress windows;  

(i) valid proof of  homeowners insurance with a short term rental endorsement; 

(j) proof of Vermont tax account for room & meals and/or sale tax purposes; 

(k) proof of positive inspection, for both new and existing buildings, by Division of 

Fire Safety or its designee; and 

(l) copy of any Short Term Rental rules applicable to the rental property. 

 



4 
 

(3) The Short Term Rental Registry form may also require such additional 

information as the Village Board of Trustees, in their discretion, deem 

reasonable, necessary and appropriate.  

 

(4) Upon transfer of ownership of any property on the Short Term Rental 

Registry, the new owner shall complete a new Short Term Rental registry form 

with updated information and any prior Short Term Rental authorization shall 

be null and void.    

 

(5) Any owner of a Short Term Rental property who fails or refuses to complete a 

Short Term Rental Registry form as provided herein shall be subject to civil 

penalties under this Ordinance.   

 

(6)  Upon complete and proper submission of all required information, as 

determined by the Short Term Rental Compliance Officer, the Compliance 

Officer shall issue a Short Term Rental Authorization and Registration Number 

authorizing lawful rental of the Short Term Rental property. 

 

(7) All Short Term Rental Authorization and Registration Numbers shall expire 

on March 31 of each year, with registration renewal forms submitted no later 

than April 30 of each year (even if actual rentals will occur later in the year). 

B. Annual Report  

The owner of Short Term Rental property shall annually complete and submit a 

report form to the Village.  Said report form shall be approved by the Board of 

Trustees and may be modified or amended from time to time with the approval of 

the Trustees.  The following information shall be provided by owner(s) of Short 

Term Rental property on the annual report form: 

(a) updated owner/on-site manager contact information, if applicable; 

(b) updated property manager contact information, if applicable; 

(c) date, duration and number of guests for each Short Term Rental period/stay; 

(d)  photographic proof that the telephone number of the person(s) responsible for 

the Short Term Rental and contact information for the Vermont Department of 

Health and the Vermont Division of Fire Safety is conspicuously posted in each 

dwelling unit of the Short Term Rental; 

(e) photographic proof that the Vermont Meals and Rooms tax license is 

conspicuously posted in each dwelling unit of the Short Term Rental;  



5 
 

(f) date of last inspection by the Vermont Division of Fire Safety or its designee; 

and 

(g) identification of any municipal complaint tickets issued and/or fines paid in 

the preceding 12 months in connection with any Short Term Rental property. 

VI.  Regulatory Requirements and Prohibited Activities. 

A. The Short Term Rental of property that is not in compliance with this Ordinance 

is prohibited. 

B. Providing false or materially misleading information on any Short Term Rental 

Registry or Annual Report form shall be a violation of this Ordinance.  

C. All Short Term Rental property in the Village shall be Owner Occupied or, if not 

Owner Occupied, under the active management and control of a property 

manager, who shall: (i) be located within a 30 minute drive of the Short Term 

Rental property being managed, (ii) available and authorized to respond 

promptly to incidents involving the Short Term Rental, and (iii) capable of 

providing timely interior and exterior access to the Short Term Rental, on a 24/7 

basis.  . 

D. All Short Term Rental property shall conspicuously display within each dwelling 

unit the current and valid name, address and phone number of the Short Term 

Rental operator (whether the owner, on-site manager, or property manager), the 

Vermont Department of Health, and the Vermont Division of Fire Safety.  In 

addition, the contact information of the Village’s Short Term Rental Compliance 

Officer shall be similarly displayed. 

E. Advertising any Short Term Rental without first obtaining a Village-issued 

Registration Number or not including the Registration Number in the 

advertisement to demonstrate that the STR is lawful shall be a violation of this 

Ordinance. 

F. Renting, using or occupying a Short Term Rental without first obtaining a Short 

Term Rental Authorization and Registration Number shall be a violation of this 

Ordinance. 

G. Short Term Rental guests shall not sublease, sublicense or assign all or any 

portion of the Short Term Rental to another person during the rental period. 

H. Short Term Rental properties shall be limited in occupancy to two guests per 

bedroom or sleeping area and a maximum of six guests total per occupancy, 

unless a waiver is granted by the Trustees. 

I. The following are expressly prohibited in connection with Short Term Rental 

properties: 

a. Gatherings of more than six persons on the STR premises during the 

period of occupancy, absent a waiver or variance by the Board of Trustees. 

b. Signs and other outside indications, other than on-site parking, that a 

property is used or occupied as a Short Term Rental. 



6 
 

c. Noise or unreasonably loud activities, whether inside or out, that violate 

the Village’s Noise Control Ordinance (Woodstock Village Ordinances, 

Title 5, Ch. 3). 

d.  Keeping of domestic pets or wolf-hybrids in violation of the Village’s 

Ordinance Regarding Control of Animals (Woodstock Village Ordinances, 

Title 2, Ch. 1). 

J. Except as otherwise provided herein, Short Term Rental of property shall occur 

no more than six (6) times during a twelve (12) month period running from April 

1 to March 31. 

K. The foregoing limitation on the number of times that a Short Term Rental 

property may be rented on an annual basis shall not apply to Owner Occupied 

Short Term Rentals occurring during the Foliage Period, which shall run from 

September 15 up to and including October 21 of each year.  During this period, 

there is no limitation on the number of times that an Owner Occupied Short 

Term Rental may be rented.  This exemption for Owner Occupied Short Term 

Rentals during the Foliage Period shall not relieve the owners of such properties 

of their obligation to comply with all other applicable requirements of federal, 

State and local law and regulations pertaining to rental properties, including 

health and safety requirements. 

 

VI. Fees.  A fee of $75.00 shall be paid to the Village in connection with the 

submission of any Short Term Rental Registry form or renewal thereof.  The 

Village Board of Trustees may, from time to time, modify this fee and may 

establish and adopt other fees related to the administration and enforcement of 

this Ordinance, and may incorporate all such fees into a duly adopted fee 

schedule. 

 

VII. Waiver/Variance.  To prevent undue hardship or delay, avoid injustice, or for 

other good cause shown, the Village Board of Trustees may, upon good cause 

shown, waive or vary the requirements of this Ordinance upon such reasonable 

terms and conditions as it may require, unless precluded by the Ordinance itself 

or by other provisions of law.  In considering any request for waiver or variance, 

the Trustees shall at least consider: (1) the reason for the request, including its 

reasonableness, and the reason for the requirement at issue, (2) the risk to public 

health, safety, welfare and convenience in granting the request, (3) the danger of 

prejudice to the applicant and third parties if the request is granted, (4) the 

timeliness of the request, and (5) whether the requestor is acting in good faith. 

 

VIII. Enforcement.  Any person who violates a provision of this civil ordinance shall be 

subject to a civil penalty of up to $800 per day for each day that such violation 

continues.  Each day the violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.  

The Compliance Officer, Woodstock Police Officers, the Woodstock Zoning 



7 
 

Administrator and the Woodstock Village/Town Manager shall all be designated 

and authorized to act as Issuing Municipal Officials to issue and pursue before 

the Judicial Bureau, or other court having jurisdiction, a municipal complaint. 

 

IX. Waiver Fees.  An Issuing Municipal Official is authorized to recover waiver fees, 

in lieu of a civil penalty, in the following amount, for any person who declines to 

contest a municipal complaint and pays the waiver fee: 

 

(a) Operating STR Without Authorization or Registration Number - $500 

 

(b) All Other Violations: 

  First Offense -     $100 

  Second Offense -   $250 

   Third Offense  -   $500 

Fourth and Subsequent Offenses -  $700 

Offenses shall be counted on a twelve (12) month basis, beginning April 1 and 

ending March 31 of each year.  An Issuing Municipal Official shall have 

authority to issue a written warning, without recovering a waiver fee, for any 

First Offense violation other than Operating a Short Term Rental Without 

Authorization or a Registration Number.  In such instance, the written warning 

shall be counted as a First Offense for calculating annual offenses. 

X. Civil Penalties.  An Issuing Municipal Official is authorized to recover civil 

penalties in the following amounts for each violation: 

 

(a) Operating STR Without Authorization or Registration Number - $800 

 

(b) All Other Violations: 

First Offense -    $400 

 Second Offense -    $600 

 Third Offense -   $800 

 Fourth and Subsequent Offenses - $800, plus automatic revocation for twelve 

months before a new Short Term Rental Authorization Application may be 

submitted.   

Offenses shall be counted on a twelve (12) month basis, beginning April 1 and 

ending March 31 of each year.  An Issuing Municipal Official shall have 



8 
 

authority to issue a written warning, without recovering a civil penalty, for any 

First Offense violation other than Operating a Short Term Rental Without 

Authorization or a Registration Number.  In such instance, the written warning 

shall be counted as a First Offense for calculating annual offenses. 

XI. Other Relief.  In addition to the enforcement procedures available under Chapter 

59 of Title 24, the Village/Town Manager is authorized to commence a civil action 

in the Civil Division of the Vermont Superior Court to obtain injunctive and 

other appropriate relief, to request revocation or suspension of any Short Term 

Rental Authorization and Registration Number on behalf of the Village Board of 

Trustees, or to pursue any other remedy authorized by law. 

 

XII.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance is deemed by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, that 

provision shall be severed from the ordinance and the remaining provisions that 

can be given effect without the severed provision shall continue in effect. 

 

XIII. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage. 

 

ADOPTED at Woodstock, Vermont, this 12th day of November, 2019, and to be effective 

upon adoption. 

 

WOODSTOCK VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Jeffrey Kahn, Chair 

Cary Agin 

Keri Cole 

Serena Nelson 

Antonina DiNatale 

 

 





50 

 

TO: Richmond Planning Commission 

FROM: Ravi Venkataraman, Town Planner 

DATE: February 13, 2020 

SUBJECT: Nomination of Acting Administrative Officer 

 

Recently, Richmond Zoning Regulations Section 8.1 (emphasis added) was brought to my attention: 

“The Administrative Officer, and an Acting Administrative Officer to serve in the Administrative Officer’s absence, 

shall be appointed by the Richmond Selectboard from nominations submitted by the Richmond Planning Commission, 

in accordance with the Act (§4448). The Administrative Officer may be removed for cause at any time by the 

Selectboard after a hearing and consultation with the Planning Commission. The Acting Administrative Officer shall 

serve at the pleasure of the Selectboard.” 

In past practice, the Town Planner has taken on the responsibilities of the Zoning Administrator when the 

Zoning Administrator has taken a prolonged leave of absence or when the Zoning Administrator position was 

vacant. Therefore, to put in place a contingency plan, I recommend that you nominate me as the Acting Zoning 

Administrator. 

I have provided draft motions below to facilitate action by the Planning Commission: 

I,____________, nominate Ravi Venkataraman as the Acting Administrative Officer for the Town of 

Richmond. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.   

 


